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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

2012 is a year full of challenges as the Asian economies are
extremely volatile to the Eurozone nations’ debt problems, the US
recovery from the financial crisis, global inflationary pressure and a
slowdown in China’s growth. Although Mainland China maintained a
robust GDP growth of 9.2% in 2011, our Central Government cut the
economic growth forecast to 7.5% in 2012.

In light of the challenging environment this financial year, our board
of directors has already adopted prudent measures to ensure
top-tier luxury goods distributorship business Sparkle Roll Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
continues to benefit in a stable manner. During this financial year, the
Group’s revenue for continuing operations increased 35%, reaching
HK$4.427 billion, compared with HK$3.287 billion in the previous
financial year. We have been focusing on opportunities to extend
our footprint in Mainland China, not limited to the first-tier cities but
second-tier cities as well.

Our net profit after tax for the year increased by 16.8%, reaching
HK$213.7 million, compared with HK$182.9 million in the previous
financial year. The increase was not in line with revenue because of
slimmer profit margins of our watch and jewellery divisions, carried
forward from the first half of this financial year, as well as rental
changes paid during the construction of “Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury
World (China Headquarter)” and “Tianjin Sparkle Roll Luxury World”.
With these two shopping malls in full operations in the near future,
we expect to see significant contributions to our non-auto divisions.
Further, our head office in Beijing will be relocated to the “Beijing
Sparkle Roll Luxury World (China Headquarter)” in or about August
this year.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

China’s Luxury Goods Market

Due to the unstable global financial environment, we have received
ongoing updates and research reports from several reputable
authorities, investment banks and global research houses stating
that China’s Luxury Market has been slowing down a bit. According
to the “Dipped in Gold” issued by CLSA Asia-Pacific Markets
analyst Aaron Fischer in May 2012, he is particularly optimistic
about established brands, predicting global growth of 10% in 2012,
down slightly from last year’s 14% rise. He also pointed out the
luxury sector proved resilient during an economic downturn. Mr.
Fischer tackled the Wall Street bonuses equal big watches and
nice handbags myth by explaining that only around 5 percent of
luxury sales come from the financial sector. So even with bonuses
well off pre-crisis levels, the luxury sector has plenty of potential to
shine. Additionally, he predicted that emerging markets’ share of
global luxury demand will increase to 73% by 2020, up from 50% at
present, with China playing a leading role.

According to the “2012 Outlook for the Retail and Consumer
Products Sector in Asia” (“2012 Outlook PWC”) issued by
PricewaterhouseCoopers in December 2011, luxury sales in
Mainland China rose 30% in 2010 and are forecast to grow 25% in
2011 to Euro 11.5 billion (US$15.5 billion), when sales in Greater
China will likely exceed Japan the first time. China’s second-tier
and third-tier cities will be important markets. China will be the
top contributor to growth in luxury sales worldwide through 2014.
Chinese consumers from Mainland and Greater China (including
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan), including Chinese tourists, are
already the world’s number two luxury customers behind those from
the US.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

Automobile Dealerships

During the year, revenue of the ultra-luxury automobile for the
distributorship of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce recorded
an approximate 36% increase to HK$4.106 billion, compared with
HK$3.017 billion in the previous financial year. All ultra-luxury cars
under the Group have performed well during this financial year,
especially Bentley which has outperformed with 487 units sold,
representing a 67% increase in units sold in this financial year
compared with 291 during the previous financial year.

According to the information under Bentley Motors Worldwide's
official website, China has become Bentley’s biggest market in
the world. During the first quarter of 2012, sales in the region
grew by approximately 84% compared with the same period in
2011. It proves Bentley has become the favorite among China’s
rich. “Bentley Beijing Century Showroom” of Bentley, the Group’s
distributor brand, housed at “Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World
(China Headquarter)”, was recently opened. The showroom is one of
the world’s largest Bentley dealerships, with a gross area of 1,135
square meters and a total investment of RMB35 million. It further
promotes Bentley’s supreme quality as well as marketing and sales
activities in the China market. We strongly believe the opening of this
showroom shall bring favorable returns to our shareholders.

Lamborghini’s performance was satisfactory during this financial
year with a total of 79 units sold, representing an increase of 9.7%
compared with 72 in the previous financial year.

Same as 2010, Rolls-Royce Beijing was again ranked No. 1
worldwide in 2011 among all the worldwide dealers in the ceremony
organized by Rolls-Royce Motor Cars Limited in New York in
February 2012. The Group’s Beijing Rolls-Royce dealer has been
awarded “Outstanding sales success of 2011 — the most cars sold
in a single year in the 107-year history of Rolls-Royce”, “Winner
APAC Sales” and “Winner Greater China Sales” by the world’s top
luxury motor brand, Rolls-Royce. In terms of Rolls-Royce sold, it
has recorded a decrease at 271 units this financial year, compared
with 295 during the previous financial year when the Ghost model
was first launched in the China market. And Rolls-Royce Tianjin was
officially inaugurated during the second half of this financial year.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

Encouragingly, income from provision of after-sale services continued
to surge during this financial year. Total revenue recorded a 50%
increase during this financial year compared with the previous
financial year.

Mainland China has emerged as one of the most important markets
for these auto brands concerned. It is inevitable to see a wider
dealership network for each brand to be set up in the years ahead,
thus creating more competition, but we are confident of achieving
sustainable growth given our track record and quality of our after-

sale services established in the past years.
Watch Distributorships

During the year, the performance of our super deluxe branded watch
division performed exceptionally well, particularly with Parmigiani.
A total of 319 watches were sold, which rocketed approximately 8
times compared with 37 in the previous financial year. Another super
brand, Richard Mille, also outperformed, and contributed over half
of this division’s total revenue with 150 watches sold. Lastly, DeWitt
also recorded steady sales during this financial year compared with
the previous financial year with a total of 102 watches sold. We
are confident that the opening of Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World
(China Headquarter) in the second half of 2012 will surely boost the
sales of the watch division.

Jewellery Distributorships

Since acquiring the top-tier branded jewellery distributorship
business at the end of 2009, the jewellery division has continued to
perform well due to the expansion of points of sales, along with the
growing acceptance and popularity of one of the brands under our
Group, Boucheron, in the PRC market.

Boucheron, the first renowned top-tier brand we worked with, has
outperformed during this financial year. Sales more than doubled
from the previous financial year, reaching around HK$35 million
compared with HK$16 million.
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FERE
Chairman’s Statement

Another renowned brand under our Group, Royal Asscher, started
operating right after joining our brand alliance in the second quarter
of 2011, and its Beijing corner was up and running at Beijing Sparkle
Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao) in the fourth quarter of 2011. During
this financial year, the brand recorded sales of 9 high-end jewellery
pieces.

After mutual discussion and deliberations, we have prematurely
ended our contract in March 2012 with Federico Buccellati, another
top-tier branded jewellery. We are so sad to make such a decision
due to the competitive high-end jewellery market.

Fine Wines Distributorships

“Ex-Chateaux” (& E F) -
launched in collaboration with our partner negociants from

The Group’s private label wine -

Bordeaux, was selling well during this financial year upon a retail
establishment located at the basement of our Beijing Sparkle Roll
Luxury World (Hua Mao). Sales of Ex-Chateaux during this financial
year jumped over 4 times to HK$12.60 million. However, sales of
top fine wines dropped to HK$3.85 million versus HK$58.8 million
in the previous financial year. We have reserved replenishment stock
of top fine wines in the summer of 2011. Since then, the prices of
top fine wines had become volatile. We therefore decided to wait
for the international markets of top fine wines to stabilize and the
right opportunity to sell these bottles to consumers and collectors,
the population of which have been increasing throughout Mainland
China, with reasonable returns.

On top of the existing cozy wine cellar located at the basement of
our Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao) in Beijing, the Group
plans to launch another wine cellar in the Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury
World (China Headquarter) in a month or two. In addition, there will
also be a wine cellar in Tianjin Sparkle Roll Luxury World.

Additionally, our investment on wine futures or “En Primeur 2010”
during this financial year is still under the Group’s books after we
disposed of “En Primeur 2009” in the previous financial year. Both
2009 and 2010 vintages are regarded by influential and famous wine
critics, Mr. Robert Parker and Ms. Jancis Robinson, as two of the
greatest vintages in recent decades. We therefore firmly believe our
investment of En Primeur 2010 will yield reasonable returns in the
foreseeable future, same as En Primeur 2009.
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FEHRE
Chairman’s Statement

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

According to 2012 Outlook PWC, sales of China’s luxury market are
expected to increase to US$15.5 billion in 2011. China is likely to
exceed Japan to become the world’s largest luxury market.

With China becoming the world’s largest luxury market and playing
a more prominent role in the global luxury market, the Group will
continue to expand our luxury goods business in the PRC, so as to
leverage our brand manager role to encourage more luxury brands to
establish a foothold in Mainland China. To bridge east with west and
foster cultural exchanges, we are going to organize and co-sponsor
the first “Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury Brands Culture Expo 2012 Fall”
in early September 2012 together with China — Europe Association
for Technical and Economic Cooperation under the Ministry of
Commerce. We hope to hold this event on an annual basis.

After the grand launch of “Bentley Beijing Century Showroom”
housed at “Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (China Headquarter)”,
other elements of the shopping mall complex including a wine cellar,
a luxury world for watches and jewellery, a warehouse and office
spaces will tentatively be launched in the third quarter of 2012.

Tianjin Sparkle Roll Luxury World, which houses our Bentley and
Rolls-Royce showrooms on Level 1, is also due to open in the third
quarter of 2012.

Looking ahead, the Group is still cautiously optimistic towards the
luxury goods markets in the PRC especially in light of the recent
monetary easing measures. We will continue to adopt a prudent
approach to increase our presence and expand our luxury goods
market in the PRC.

On this note, we reduce the dividend payout ratio for this financial
year, thus reserving more capital to meet the challenges ahead.
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Chairman’s Statement
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we will generate profitable returns to our shareholders in future.
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Chairman
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18
to the financial statements. Its subsidiaries were principally engaged
in trading of luxury automobiles, watches, jewellery in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) (excluding Hong Kong and Macau) and
trading of fine wines in the PRC.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the continuing operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2012 of approximately HK$4,427.4 million
represented an increase of approximately 35% compared to
approximately HK$3,286.7 million recorded in the corresponding
period of last year. The significant increase in turnover was
attributable to the encouraging performance of luxury good division
that a profit of HK$213.7 million was resulted for the year ended
31 March 2012, as compared with a net profit of approximately
HK$198.9 million for the last financial year.

At 31 March 2012, the Group maintained a net cash position with
cash at banks and in hand of approximately HK$130.4 million (2011:
HK$215.3 million), short-term bank borrowings of approximately
HK$208.4 million (2011: HK$53.7 million) and long-term borrowings
of approximately HK$56 million (2011: nil). The Group had sufficient
financial resources and will continue to finance its business
development by internal resources and bank borrowings.
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Report of the Directors

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2012 of HKO0.3 cent per share (2011: HK1
cent), which together with the interim dividend of HKO0.5 cent per
share (2011: HKO.3 cent per share) make a total dividend of HKO0.8
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK1.3
cent per share). The total dividend amounted to approximately
HK$23.8 million (2011: HK$38.7 million) for the year ended 31
March 2012. The final dividend is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 20 August
2012 and payable on or around 10 October 2012 if it is approved.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Automobile Dealerships

During this financial year, 487 units of Bentley automobiles (2011:
291 units), 79 units of Lamborghini automobiles (2011: 72 units) and
271 units of Rolls-Royce automobiles (2011: 295 units) were sold.
Total revenue of approximately HK$4,106.3 million was generated
from sales of automobiles compared to HK$3,016.9 million in last
year. The gross profit margin for automobiles was 7.8%, a decrease
of around 0.4% on overall basis as a result of competitive pricing
strategy in a fast growing market and increase in purchase cost from
manufacturers.

Moreover, after-sale services generated services income of
approximately HK$80.9 million compared to HK$54.0 million in last
year.
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Watch Distributorships

During the year, 150 pieces of Richard Mille (2011: 120 pieces), 102
pieces of DeWitt (2011: 150 pieces), 319 pieces of Parmigiani (2011:
37 pieces) and nil pieces of deLaCour (2011: 5 pieces) were sold.

Sales of watches generated revenue of approximately HK$188.0
million compared to HK$137.8 million in last year. Management
believe that increase of 36.4% in sales revenue of watches was
mainly attributed by the cross-selling strategy among different
products and the opening of more watches shops in Beijing.

Jewellery Distributorships

During the year, 359 pieces of Boucheron jewelleries (2011: 197
pieces), 9 pieces of Royal Asscher jewelleries (2011: nil) and 10
pieces of Buccellati jewelleries (2011: 3 pieces) were sold. Sales
of jewelleries generated revenue of approximately HK$35.9 million
compared to HK$16.1 million in last year, representing a growth of
123%. Both Boucheron and Royal Asscher had opened their stores
in Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao).

Moreover, the Group cooperated with Royal Asscher in development
of their sales network in Mainland China.
Fine Wines Distributorship

During the year, 75,476 bottles (2011: 22,813 bottles) of fine wines
including 372 (2011: 7,468) bottles of top fine wine were sold.
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NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had 348 (2011: 291) employees.
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged to profit
or loss amounted to approximately HK$45.2 million for the year
(2011: HK$54.5 million). All permanent employees were under the
remuneration policy of fixed monthly salary with discretionary bonus.

There has been no change to the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 7 October 2002. On 4 July 2011,
the Company granted 5,216,000 share options to certain of its
employees at an exercise price of HK$1.52 per share.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2012 were approximately
HK$1,922.9 million (2011: HK$1,703.9 million) which were mainly
financed by the owners’ equity and total liabilities of approximately
HK$1,452.2 million (2011: HK$1,263.2 million) and HK$465.9 million
(2011: HK$435.5 million) respectively.

The Directors consider the Group will have sufficient working capital
for its existing operations and financial resources for financing future
business expansion and capital expenditures.

The Group’s bank balances and cash were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts primarily
for hedging its purchases that are mainly denominated in Euro. At
31 March 2012, the Group recognised foreign currency forward
contracts with a fair value of HK$3.2 million assets (2011: nil) as
derivative financial instruments.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During this financial year, 3,504,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.002 each were issued in August 2011 pursuant to the exercise
of share options by a director and an employee.

The Group’s gearing ratio then computed as total borrowings over
the owners’ equity was approximately 18.1% as at 31 March 2012
(2011: 4.2%).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB
while the purchases and production cost are mainly denominated in
Euro, Swiss Franc, HK$ and RMB.

For this year, the Group was mainly exposed to foreign currency
exchange risk of Euro, Swiss Franc and RMB and the management
mainly monitored the foreign currency exchange risk with advices
from the Group’s major bankers.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, bank deposits and inventories of the Group
with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$39.1 million (2011:
HK$42.3 million) and HK$49.4 million (2011: Nil) respectively were
pledged to secure bank loans of the Group and general banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 47.0% and 97.6% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top five
customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 50 and 51.

An interim dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share amounting to
approximately HK$14,899,000 was paid to shareholders during the
year. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKO.3 cent per share amounting to approximately HK$8,939,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2012.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 57 and 58 and note 33 to the financial
statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$25,980,000 (2011: HK$70,257,000) in surplus.

SHARE CAPITAL

3,504,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each were issued upon
exercise of share options by a director and an employee (Note 35 to
the financial statements).

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2012 are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 180.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Gao Yu
Mr. Qi Jian Wei
Mr. Zhang Si Jian

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

In accordance with bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any director appointed during the year will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election.
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No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the
period of two years and renewable for one year up to his retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Tong Kai Lap, Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong and Mr. Lee Thomas Kang
Bor will retire by rotation and, being eligible, for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
MANAGEMENTS

Brief biographical details of directors and managements are set out
in pages 43 to 47.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 40 and elsewhere in the financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
NOTES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 March 2012, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and convertible notes of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERARAREMEBEEE 2R
7 HERORATRERRE 2 #ES

RIZB-——F=ZA=+—"RH JZEFLRE
ZBMBEATRARR REBBEE 2B &
ARERERTREBEALAREESLMER
B ([EHFEBERD]) E326MEEZE
R ARBELTRARNEFETES
RHMBRETUARTANEARRARE B
ERGMBRAR ([BRM]) Z#EmIAT

REATDRODREBRS 2FR

Percentage of

Number of
issued ordinary
Name of director Capacity shares held
BEEET
EEpE L EEREAR
Mr. Tong Kai Lap Founder of discretionary 10,274,400
(“Mr. Tong”) trust
BRI EE(TELED 2REFTATA
Mr. Tong Beneficial owner 9,760,000
BErE BEalAA
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Beneficial owner 10,640,000
EIxE BEnlAA
Mr. Zhang Si Jian Beneficial owner -
REBREE BEnlAA
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner 1,000,000
gEBRLE BEnlAA
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong Beneficial owner 4,000
MBS 5 & ERBEBA
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor Beneficial owner 1,256,000
FHERTE BEnlAA
* representing balance of share options held on 31 March 2012 (details

in Note 35 to the Financial Statements)
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5,000,000 5,000,000 0.17%
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Notes:

)

Interest in the issued shares shown in this row is beneficially owned
by Rapid Alert International Limited, a company controlled by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Tong is the founder. Accordingly, Mr.
Tong is deemed to be interested in these shares. The total interests
of issued shares of Mr. Tong are 20,034,400 shares or approximately
0.67% of issued share capital of the Company.

The denominator used is 2,979,828,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2012.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the directors nor their associates has any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
convertible notes of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 March 2012. Particulars of the scheme and the movements
in the share options during the year were set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder

BRERBEEEB

Capacity

51

Substantial shareholders
FERRE

Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL”)
BHIERBR AR ([BHEIZR])

Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi") (Note 1)

g ([5eE]) (M)
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Beneficial owner

BEamBEAA

and beneficial owner

Held by controlled corporation

IS EAERFE R ESEA A

P EE

(1) AT RZEBTROEZHELEAA
Y AZZREFTES 2 A A Rapid Alert
International Limited Bz 6 » EIt - B A
WEARLEEROPHEEEZ BFLEeH
¥ 520,034,400k B TR D (A RFE
BITHAH0.67% ) 2 S -

(2) T 5 & 52,979,828,850% % 17 » Bl — &
——EZA=+—HZEETRMDESH-

(B) BMEXKRTXIHERE] —EAFEEEN R
—E-—FZAZ+—H BESIIERSEZ
ek NG .9 A /N S R S IR VEL DN g
EERD HERDR AT RRERPHEEE
AESSAR Zet BFBERBRERER
2 B E B SRR M FE35 o

BRE

ApmzEREE (8] DREAR
AR -_ZZ_F+ALBERTZRREHK
BB EBRBRRMN-

FERR

RZFB-——F=ZA=1+—R REAQRFARE
EF LB RDIEBHIREFEZCTIER
RECMAT BEXAEEE TESTZ#
g THBRRENEARARERARF
ERITRARAES ZAMER:

REQXARGZHR
Percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital of
shares the Company
HERQEE BT
B EE RAEABDLH
(Note 4)
(HM$5E4)
963,440,000 32.33%
968,400,000 32.50%
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Name of shareholder

BRRESEEB

Ms. Zhu Shuang (“Ms. Zhu”) (Note 1)
K+ ([Rz+]) (M)

Sequoia Capital China

Growth Fund I, L.P. (Note 2)
Sequoia Capital China

Growth Fund I, L.P. (Fff5¥2)

Mr. Shen Nanpeng (Note 2)
L Ea S o A (B EE2)

SNP China Enterprises Limited
(Note 2)

SNP China Enterprises Limited
(Mi5E2)

SC China Holding Limited (Note 2)
SC China Holding Limited (Fff3F2)

Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited (Note 2)

Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited ( fif3£2)

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P. (Note 2)

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund

Management |, L.P. (Fff5E2)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll, Inc. (Note 3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Ill, Inc. (Ff3E3)

Capacity

&4

Interest of spouse
Bic 48 7 2

Beneficial owner

i

BE&HBEAA

L

Interest of controlled corporation
A E R

Interest of controlled corporation

A B s

Interest of controlled corporation

2 % B 5

Investment manager

REKE

Interest of controlled corporation

EHDAE S

Interest of controlled corporation

A B s

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital of
shares the Company
EARDBE#IT

BRHEAR [ N=
(Note 4)

(PFt3E4)

968,400,000 32.50%
209,328,000 7.02%
240,000,000 8.05%
240,000,000 8.05%
240,000,000 8.05%
240,000,000 8.05%
240,000,000 8.05%
300,000,000 10.07%
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Percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares the Company
EERARE#T
BRERE BB 54 BRH®E RAES
(Note 4)
(PFt3E4)
Morgan Stanley Private Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 10.07%
Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman)
Limited (Note 3)
Morgan Stanley Private 2 )% B 2
Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman)
Limited ( Fff5£3)
Morgan Stanley Private Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 10.07%
Equity Asia lll, L.L.C. (Note 3)
Morgan Stanley Private 2 )% B 2
Equity Asia Ill, L.L.C. (Ff3F3)
Morgan Stanley Private Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 10.07%
Equity Asia lll, L.P. (Note 3)
Morgan Stanley Private ZHDEE R
Equity Asia lll, L.P. (Fff5£3)
MSPEA Il Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 10.07%
Cooperatief U.A. (Note 3)
MSPEA Il Holdings ZHEE R
Cooperatief U.A. (H3E3)
MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (Note 3) Beneficial owner 300,000,000 10.07%

MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (fif3¥3)  BZ#EA A
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Notes:

0

SRHL is a company wholly owned by Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi is
deemed to be beneficial holder of shares held by SRHL. Ms. Zhu is wife
of Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Ms. Zhu is deemed to be beneficial holders of
shares held by SRHL and Mr. Qi.

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund Management |, L.P. is interested
in 240,000,000 Shares representing approximately 8.05% of the
Company’s issued share capital, of which (i) 209,328,000 Shares
(7.02%) is held by Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund I, L.P., (i)
4,992,000 Shares (0.17%) is held by Sequoia Capital China Growth
Partners Fund I, L.P. and (iiij 25,680,000 Shares (0.86%) is held by
Sequoia Capital China GF Principals Fund I, L.P.. Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund |, L.P., Sequoia Capital China Growth Partners
Fund I, L.P. and Sequoia Capital China GF Principals Fund I, L.P.
(collectively “SCC Growth Funds”) are managed by Sequoia Capital
China Advisors Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The SCC Growth Funds’ general partner is Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund Management |, L.P., whose general partner is SC
China Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
SC China Holding Limited is wholly owned by SNP China Enterprises
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Shen Nanpeng (also known
as “Neil Nanpeng Shen”) (“Mr. Shen”). Mr. Shen disclaims beneficial
ownership with respect to the shares held by the SCC Growth Funds
except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein because he is not
ultimate owner that owns these shares. Each of Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited, Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund Management |,
L.P., SC China Holding Limited and SNP China Enterprises Limited is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by the SCC Growth Funds.
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MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (“MSPEA”) is interested in 300,000,000
Shares representing approximately 10.07% of the Company’s issued
share capital. MSPEA, a limited liability company incorporated in the
Netherlands and under Dutch law, is indirectly controlled by Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, L.P. (the “MSPEA III”) (through its control
of Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia Ill Holdings (Cayman) Limited
and MSPEA Il Holdings Cooperatief U.A.), a fund managed by the
private equity arm of Morgan Stanley. The general partner of MSPEA IlI
is Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, L.L.C., the managing member
of which is Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Morgan Stanley. Each of MSPEA Ill Holdings Cooperatief
U.A., Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman) Limited,
MSPEA Ill, Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, L.L.C. and Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, Inc. is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by MSPEA.

Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,

interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
(including any interests in options in respect of such capital), which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in

all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted a share option share scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
RMO Agreement

On 31 December 2010, Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited
(“BJDT”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an office rental, management fees and office expenses
agreement (“New RMO Agreement”) with Ms. Zhu, spouse of Mr.
Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the Company, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013, in respect
of the office rental, management fees and office expenses with Ms.
Zhu and subject to an annual cap of RMB1,860,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid by
BJDT to Ms. Zhu amounted to RMB1,860,000 or approximately
HK$2,237,000.

Showroom Rental Agreement

On 31 December 2010, Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading
Development Limited (“TUXC”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a showroom rental agreement
(“Showroom Rental Agreement”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial
shareholder of the Company, for a term commencing from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2013, in respect of the office rental,
management fees and office expenses with Mr. Qi and subject to an
annual cap of RMB2,640,000.

A supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) entered
between TJXC and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 for extension of the
duration of Showroom Rental Agreement from its original terms of
3 years from 1 January 2011 inclusive to 10 years from 1 January
2011 inclusive.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid
by TUXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,640,000 or approximately
HK$3,175,000.
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Beijing Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011, Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development
Limited (“SRXTD”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing
Agreement 1I”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a portion of bonded warehouse for exhibition purpose,
of a portion of boned warehouse having a gross floor area of
approximately 2,150 square meter at portions of Basement Level 1
of Tower A and B, No.40 Xinfu 2nd Village, Choyang District, Beijing,
the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid
by SRXTD to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB5,130,000 or approximately
HK$6,169,000.

Beijing Leasing Agreement Il

On 30 June 2011, Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Limited
(“BJMH”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing Agreement II”)
with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the Company, for
a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for leasing a
showroom for luxury automobiles dealership business, of a portion of
showroom having a gross floor area of approximately 1,135 square
meter at portions of Level 1 of Tower A, No.40 Xinfu 2nd Village,
Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid
by BJMH to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB8,280,000 or approximately
HK$9,957,000.
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Beijing Leasing Agreement llI

On 30 June 2011, Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited (“SROBJ”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing
Agreement III”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a showroom for distribution of fine wines, watches and
jewelleries, of a portion of showroom having a gross floor area of
approximately 2,148 square meter at portions of Level 1 and 2 of
Tower A, No.40 Xinfu 2nd Village, Choyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid by
SROBJ to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB10,170,000 or approximately
HK$12,229,000.

Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

On 30 June 2011, BJDT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Beijing Leasing
Agreement 1IV”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the
Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021, for
leasing a showroom for office, of a portion of office having a gross
floor area of approximately 1,280 square meter at Level 3 of Tower A
and portion of Level 7 of Tower B, No.40 Xinfu 2nd Village, Choyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid
by BJDT to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB3,420,000 or approximately
HK$4,112,000.
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Tianjin Leasing Agreement |

On 30 June 2011
Limited (“TJHY”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Tianjin Leasing
Agreement 1I”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the

, Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development

Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a showroom for luxury automobiles dealership, having
a gross floor area of approximately 366.13 square meter at Zeng
No.2 and Zeng No.3, No.162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid
by TJHY to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,250,000 or approximately
HK$2,706,000.

Tianjin Leasing Agreement Il
On 30 June 2011,

the Company, entered into a lease agreement (“Tianjin Leasing
Agreement II”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder of the

TJXC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of

Company, for a 10-year term, from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2021,
for leasing a showroom for distribution of fine wines, watches and
jewelleries, of a portion of showroom having a gross floor area of
approximately 949.80 square meter at Commercial Units No. 2-201
and No. 2-202, No.162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the total rental charge paid
by TUXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB2,880,000 or approximately
HK$3,463,000.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2012.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 & 2011
were audited by BDO Limited (“BDQO”).

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 were
audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK”), now known as JBPB & Co.
Due to a merger of the businesses of GTHK and BDO to practise
in the name of BDO, GTHK resigned and BDO was appointed as
auditor of the Company effective from 24 November 2010.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change of auditor
in the preceding three years.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 17
August 2012 (Friday) to 20 August 2012 (Monday) (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for attending and voting at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, all share transfer documents, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 August
2012 (Thursday).
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The register of members of the Company will also be closed on 28
and 29 August 2012 (Tuesday and Wednesday), during which dates
no transfer of shares in the Company will be registered, for the
purpose of determining the entitlement of the shareholders to receive
the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012.
Subject to approval of the shareholders at the 2012 Annual General
Meeting, the proposed final dividend will be payable on or around
10 October 2012 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 29 August 2012. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 27 August
2012 (Monday).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at 4:30 p.m.
on 20 August 2012 at The Hong Kong Bankers Club, 43/F,
Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, Central, Hong Kong and a notice
of annual general meeting will be published and despatched in due
course.

On behalf of the Board

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board”) agrees that corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence. Corporate governance requirements keep changing,
therefore the Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that all practices can be met with legal
and statutory requirements. Throughout the financial year ended 31
March 2012, the Group has complied with all applicable the Code
Provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company has been in
compliance with the Code throughout the financial year.

MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted of Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Company Issuers (“Model Code”) Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules to govern securities transactions by the
Directors. After having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they complied with the Model Code during
the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive, three Non-executive
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as defined by
the Stock Exchange. The biographical details are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Managements” section.

The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors have signed the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm their
independence.
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Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three year.

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend policy,
significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts and
major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s business
is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each
department. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate. The
Board members have access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group has a clear division of responsibilities for its top
management and separates leadership structure where the role of
Chairman is segregated from that of Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the Board,
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established and that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day business of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently six Non-executive Directors of whom three are
independent. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director,
including the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least every
three years. This means that the specific term of appointment of a
director cannot exceed three years.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE ZERHERBR

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operatng ZEE@EHETEHHATAER ZBHHELE
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 7 Board & XRI|B -UNMHEEKHE - R _T——£F

meetings were held in 2011/2012. Individual attendance of each /—ZE——FHET7TAEEESH - N _F
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, —— %%,/ —_ZT——"F SLEETHEEES
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee &# EXZE€ LS HHZEg ez kit
meetings during 2011/2012 is set out below: HEEgEHIBAFENAT

Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERE EBRY
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee

Director Bz Exg ENZEE FHZzEE REZEE
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Tong Kai Lap BRIk 6/6  N/A i 11 NAT#EA
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang |ETRE 6/6  N/A i 171 N/ATEMR
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong HAOREE 5/6  NATEA NATER NATEAE
Non-executive Director FHTEE
Mr. Zhang Si Jian REBBEAE 6/6 NATER NATER NATHEHA
Mr. Qi Jian Wei ERELE 5/6  NATEA NATER NATESE
Mr. Gao Yu SEEE 6/6  N/ATEA N/A 1~ N/A 7~
Independent Non-executive BTN TEE

Director
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo BEW(FERZESTE)

(Chairman of the Audit Committeg) 6/6 2/2 1/1 11
Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman of ~ MBI & (#BZE &+ /E)

the Remuneration Committee) 6/6 2/2 1/1 11
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor TEREE

(Chairman of the Nomination (IBEZE2FE)

Committee) 6/6 2/2 11 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditor for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its members include:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, has
appropriate professional qualification in accounting and extensive
experience in accounting and auditing matters. Senior management
and external auditor shall normally attend the meetings. The Audit
Committee held 2 meetings in 2011/2012 with representatives from
BDO Limited, the external auditor of the Company for the purpose of
discharging the aforesaid duties.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2011/2012.

° Review of annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2012 and interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2011, with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

o Review and approval of the engagement letters of BDO
Limited, the nature and scope of the audit and their reporting
obligations.

° Review of internal controls and risk management systems of
the Group.
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° Review reports from BDO Limited to Audit Committee.

o Review of connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere

including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,

in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders’ interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and officers
by linking their compensation with performance and measured
it against corporate goals. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about their proposals
relating to remuneration of Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if considered necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors

and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and two Executive Directors. Its members

include:
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor
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Executive Director

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in 2011/2012
to review and approve directors’ and senior managements’
remuneration. The directors’ fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2011/2012 are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during 2011/2012.

° Review of the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share options scheme with recommendations
to the Board for approval.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Lee Thomas Kang Bor (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Choy Sze
Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
member, assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of two years and are
required to retire and eligible for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in every three year in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

BITES

BRI
EyETI AL

R-ZE——F / —FT——F -FWEE8eH
BTG UBHAAMAEES AT
Bz -FHMZEeeeeFEMRILAES
NFERITEERBIYIERITEEZ2ESH
L AR REEN _T——F )/ ~FT——
FZWEEI NI ERERM 11 -

INTREMEEGN —T——F/-“F—=
FETZTETEHEZ:

s RARMERTEZERSMAERAEZ
e

s RAFATES (BREBELIFNTES)
ZEH - YREFESELER HEFE
o

s REBITEBRESE YAEFEEL
B HEEL-

REEES

REZBEN_FTNF+ARNBNXL H
—ERBYUATEEFTRERNEE(ZEEE
B) BHBBEERMESKEEMK-

RAZEQ/TERACRTHRTIESS
ZRE RRRER (BEXE M#RE
B) EMZREZEIRNEETSREEER
R -YWeRErEERtTE=ZgRBEZE
AIAL FHEBMYIRTERTZE LD 5
ZEREHFZETEFLEFT (LEREIRER
TREH) BEFESHBEERNESSRM
HEER-

B EMITTEE MBI IFRNTERTZHEE
WY RME WARBARRZABANE
ZFREARABRRBFAGLEER R X
NEERBEEEL-

38 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§



Eéé /D#
Corporate Governance Report

The principal work performed by the Nomination Committee during
2011/2012:

° Recommendation to the Board that Mr. Tong Kai Lap, Mr. Zhao
Xiao Dong, Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor shall retire and offer
themselves for re-election at 2012 annual general meeting.

o Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Board Committee.

o Assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors according to the criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditor is appointed by resolution of the Annual
General Meeting and the Directors are authorised to fix the
remunerations for the auditing services.

The fee paid/payable to our auditor for annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2012 amounted to approximately HK$1.17 million
(2011: HK$1.3 million).

The auditor has performed other non-auditing services during the
year with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$0.48 million
(2011: HK$0.28 million).
based on the policy developed by them in this regard and made
recommendations to the Board for these non-auditing services

The Audit Committee has considered

conducted by our auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that activities of the Board are
efficient and effective by assisting the chairman to prepare agenda
for meeting and by preparing and disseminating Board papers to
the Directors and board committees in a timely and comprehensive
manner. With respect to the company secretarial function, the
company secretary maintains formal minutes for Board and other
meetings.
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The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making decisions.
The company secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases, including
publication and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely dissemination
of announcements and information relating to the Group to the
market and ensuring that proper notifications are made of directors’
dealings in Securities of the Group.

The company secretary also advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures that the
standards and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed
and, where required, reflected in the annual report of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer question on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. Shareholders have statutory rights to call
for extraordinary general meetings and put forward agenda items
for considerations by shareholders. Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must
be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put to vote at the
Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll. The chairman
of the Annual General Meeting will explain the detailed procedure
for conducting a poll at the commencement of the Annual General
Meeting.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for the assessment and management of risk. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and put in place policies
and procedures. The Company has not appointed an internal auditor.
The internal controls are monitored and reviewed regularly by
appropriate senior management so as to ensure that the categories
of risks are managed effectively.

The executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each business
in the division within the agreed strategies. Business plans and
budgets are prepared annually by the management of individual
businesses and subject to review and approval by the Board. The
Board is overall responsible for monitoring the operations of the
business within the Group. Monitoring activities include the review
and approval of business strategies, budgets, and plans, and the
setting of key business performance targets. When setting budget
and forecast, management identifies, evaluates and reports on the
likelihood and potential financial impact of significant business risks.

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiary operations and the Group’s finance department oversees
the Group’s cash position.

During the year, the Audit Committee and Board have reviewed
internal control of the Company. The Board considers that the
Group’s internal control system is satisfactory.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective for
the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting policies
adopted by the Group are set out in the “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” of the note 3 to the financial statements. The
Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in financial reporting. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 48 to 49 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman & Executive Director
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TONG KAI LAP (Chairman and Chief Strategic Officer)

Aged 52, graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1982 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.
Since graduation, he worked in various international banks in the
commercial, corporate and investment banking areas. Mr. Tong is
a licensed representative for Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the Securities and Future Ordinance, a
senior director of a corporate finance advisory firm and the past
president of the Rotary Club of Tsim Sha Tsui. Mr. Tong is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Tong joined the Group in August 2002.

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 45, graduated in the Law Department (Economic Law
Speciality) of Beijing University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree in
Law. Mr. Zheng has nearly 15 years experience in Beijing in the areas
of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis management
and financial advisory. Mr. Zheng is a Standing Director of China
Automobile Dealers Association and a Director of China High-Tech
Industrialization Association. He is a founding member of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Zheng joined
the Group in October 2006.

ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 44, graduated in the Information Technology Department of
Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990 with a Bachelor
degree in Engineering. He has over 14 years experience in the areas
of wholesale and retail management of luxury goods in Beijing. Mr.
Zhao joined the Group in September 2008.
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO YU

Aged 38, is currently a Managing Director of the Private Equity
Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, primarily focusing on
private equity investment activities in China. He is also a non-
executive director of both Belle International Holdings Ltd and China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd., shares of both companies are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and a director of Tongkun Group Co., Ltd which is listed in Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, he
worked in Citigroup’s Investment Banking Division in Asia for about
five years. Mr. Gao also worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s
Debt Capital Markets Group in New York. Mr. Gao graduated
from Stanford University with a Master’'s degree in engineering-
economic systems and operations research as well as from Tsinghua
University in Beijing with dual Bachelor’s degrees in engineering and
economics.

Ql JIAN WEI

Aged 57, has over 15-year experience in the jewelry business in
China including trading management, development of distribution
channels and production operations. He graduated from machineries
profession of Beijing Open University in 1982. He is the elder
brother of Mr. Qi Jian Hong, the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll
Holdings Limited.

ZHANG SI JIAN

Aged 46, is a Managing Director of Sequoia Capital China focusing
on growth capital investments. Prior to joining Sequoia Capital
China in 2007, he worked with Baring Private Equity Asia in Hong
Kong and Shanghai, and Doughty Hanson in London. Prior to
joining private equity, he worked for Deutsche Bank in its Investment
Banking division where he advised international companies in their
IPO, block trade, debt and convertible bond offerings. He has a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
and a Master Degree of Science from University of Minnesota and a
Master Degree of Business Administration from The Wharton School
of The University of Pennsylvania.
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 53, is the Vice Chairman of National Resources Securities
Limited. Mr. Choy has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University.
Mr. Choy is an independent non-executive director of Chengdu
Putian Telecommunications Cable Company Limited and Zhaojin
Mining Industry Company Limited, shares of both companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choy is also
the Chairman of the Institute of Securities Dealers Limited, fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Directors, fellow member of
Institute of Financial Accountants, fellow member of the Institute
of Compliance Officers, member of Society of Registered Financial
Planner Limited, member of the HKSAR Election Committee
(financial services subsector), member of Shantou Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee, honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Friendship and committee member of Rotary Club
Kowloon West.

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 58, holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong and has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong for over 31
years’ experience. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director
of Wing Lee Holdings Limited, Same Time Holdings Limited and 21
Holdings Limited, shares of these companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace
with Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Ex-Officio
Member of Heung Yee Kuk New Territories, member of Panel of
Adjudicators of Obscene Articles Tribunal, member of Buildings
Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages.
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EENEEEAEBZERE

Biographies of Directors and Managements

LEE THOMAS KANG BOR

Aged 58, is a non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
and an independent non-executive director and chairman of the
audit committee of CIG Yangtze Ports PLC whose shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee
is a member of the Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of London with
a bachelor’s and master’'s degrees in laws and was called to the
Bar of the Lincoln’s Inn of United Kingdom. He served as President
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong from 1999 to 2002, and is
currently Deputy President of the Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’
Association and Vice President of Hong Kong Professionals and
Senior Executives Association.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
UPDATE

The Directors’ biographical details update, which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, since 1
October 2011 and up to 31 March 2012 has been reflected in the
above section.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ql JIAN HONG

Aged 45, is the President of the automobile dealership division and
watch distributorship division of the Group. Mr. Qi has over 15 years
experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of
luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi joined the Group in June 2008. He is
directors of Beijing Shou Ying Tong Shang Trading and Commercial
Limited (formerly known as Beijing Bin Li Group Limited). Mr. Qi is
a Standing Director of China Automobile Dealers Association. He
is also the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors and Managements

MOK HENRY WING KAI

Aged 51, Mr.
company secretary of the Company and he joined the
Group in August 2010. Before joining the Company, Mr. Mok had
been a senior management of some listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mok is the chief financial officer and

Mr. Mok holds a degree of Master of Business Administration jointly
granted by The University of Manchester and The University of
Wales (Bangor) and a degree of Master of Science (Manufacturing
Systems Engineering) granted by The University of Warwick of
United Kingdom. Mr.
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is also a member of
Hong Kong Securities Institute and Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Mok is a fellow member of Hong Kong

LEUNG KWOK NING

Aged 50,
dealership division of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 27 years of

is the Deputy General Manager of the automobile

experience in managing the automobile aftersales service businesses
and sales management particularly for Bentley since 2003. Mr.
Leung joined the Group in June 2008 and he is responsible for
managing the sales of Bentley and aftersales service.

HO SIU WAH

Aged 42,
dealership division of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 10 years of

is the Deputy General Manager of the automobile

experience in management sales of automobiles. Mr. Ho joined the
Group in June 2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales of
Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{§H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Sparkle Roll Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 179, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number PO5057

Hong Kong, 26 June 2012
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HE-T——F=A=+—AILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
—B-=F —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT T T
Continuing operations BERSEER
Revenue e & 6 4,427,423 3,286,688
Cost of sales S5 AR (8,975,510) (2,919,521)
Gross profit EF 451,913 367,167
Other income H b A 7 80,942 49,963
Selling and distribution costs HE KA A (224,095) (125,109)
Administrative expenses THER (74,143) (70,984)
Other operating expenses Hihig e & A - (3,710)
Operating profit KRR 8 234,617 217,327
Finance costs Bl & AR AN 9 (9,990) (8,556)
Profit before income tax B BT 8 %4 A % A 224,627 208,771
Income tax expense T8 &S i 10 (10,939) (9,889)
Profit for the year from BEREELKZ
continuing operations AR EF E R 213,688 198,882
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEN
Loss for the year from discontinued = B & IFEE %S 2
operation KEEFEE 16 - (16,023)
Profit for the year 7 B E A 213,688 182,859
Other comprehensive income, BREZEMEZEEA
net of tax
Release of exchange reserve upon & B B A B B R B
disposal of subsidiaries AN fK 1 - (4,061)
Exchange gains on translation of BMEBINEBI B IRER 2
financial statements of foreign P 5 Uk 2
operations 15,181 4,046
Total comprehensive income AFEEZHEIWR AL
for the year 228,869 182,844
Profit/(loss) for the year THALTEEREE
attributable to: = (ER) -
Owners of the Company KRARHEE A 13 214,188 183,677
Non-controlling interests e A R 2 (500) (818)
213,688 182,859
Total comprehensive income THALTEEZE
attributable to: LON -t
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIE ZEWN 229,390 183,662
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR 4 2w (521) (818)
228,869 182,844




FerTEBARK (8)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BHE—_T——HF=—A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
—E——F —E—%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
= FHERT TR
Earnings/(loss) per share from FARQTHEE AE
continuing and discontinued BFERERIEREXEL
operations attributable to ZEBREF, (FA)
the owners of the Company
during the year 15
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREX
2R (F8)
from continuing operations FHECE T HK7.2 cents 1l HK7.1 cents 71l
from discontinued operation B IEEEET N/A T~E A HK(0.6) cent 71l
HK7.2 cents 1l HK6.5 cents &1l
Diluted earnings/(loss) BRE#E
per share R, (F#E)
from continuing operations REREED HK7.2 cents &1l HK7.1 cents 1l
from discontinued operation ERIMEE N/A REA HK(0.6) cent & 1ll
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MR-ZZE——F=H=+—H Asat 31 March 2012

2012 2011
—B-C—F —T——%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT F& T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER IS L 17 92,969 79,603
Goodwill S 19 580,679 580,679
Other intangible assets Hihfm & E 20 2,380 3,917
Rental deposits paid to BENEEALEES KRS
related parties 21(a) 14,232 -
Prepayment for acquisition of BEYE KBERREZ
property, plant and equipment TE B FRIB 25 53,206 =
Financial assets at fair value through 2 A EREZEKXIIE 2
profit or loss TREE 22 79,837 =
823,303 664,199
Current assets RENEE
Inventories ey 23 508,649 353,469
Trade receivables e E 5 FRIA 24 29,529 90,625
Deposits, prepayments and Ee EHRER
other receivables E h fE W k1B 25 374,436 337,726
Amount due from a related party FEU— % BEE A T3R8 21(b) 14,232 =
Tax recoverable AT 4 [ 77 18 - 279
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 29 3,208 =
Pledged bank deposits BEEMRITER 26 39,126 42,325
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEIAS 26 130,382 215,300
1,099,562 1,039,724
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FERE 558 27 20,435 15,438
Receipts in advance, accrued TEURIE BT E A R
charges and other payables H {th & 5 3K I8 28 166,408 307,422
Amounts due to related parties FEISREE A T FRIB 21(c) 2,276 46,448
Provision for taxation T IE B 7,097 6,099
Borrowings BE 30 208,433 53,665
404,649 429,072
Net current assets REBEEFE 694,913 610,652
Total assets less current liabilities EEERABAE 1,518,216 1,274,851




L
FaBkRRE (8)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

RN-_ZT——F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2012

2012 2011
—E-—F ==
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FATT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other payables H b & 5 3E 28 3,089 3,666
Borrowings BE 30 56,000 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE A E 31 2,153 2,734
61,242 6,400
Net assets EEFE 1,456,974 1,268,451
EQUITY E=
Share capital fi& 4 32 5,959 5,952
Reserves i 33.1 1,437,329 1,227,468
Proposed final dividend R R AR IR B, 14 8,939 29,763
Equity attributable to the owners ZAATEA AELER
of the Company 1,452,227 1,263,183
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,747 5,268
Total equity R 1,456,974 1,268,451
Tong Kai Lap Zheng Hao Jiang
BRI BT
Director Director

BEF EF
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MR-ZZE——F=H=+—H Asat 31 March 2012

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt FET FATT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries EPENGIE: Fa 18 - =
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W BT /B8 R B ZkIE 18 913,334 878,235
Tax recoverable A] Uy @ %7 18 - 279
Pledged bank deposits 2HEFRITER 26 6,369 3,369
Cash at banks RITIR 2 26 6,965 254
926,668 882,137
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued charges EETE A 28 910 1,418
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BB A Al 318 18 18,200 3,200
Borrowings B8 30 14,000 =
33,110 4,618
Net current assets REBEEFE 893,558 877,519
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERABARG 893,558 877,519
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings B 30 56,000 =
Net assets EEFE 837,558 877,519
EQUITY =
Share capital & A< 32 5,959 5,952
Reserves Gl 33.2 822,660 841,804
Proposed final dividend #R R HA R B 14 8,939 29,763
Total equity RSB 837,558 877,519

Tong Kai Lap
=4 @A
Director

EF

Zheng Hao Jiang
BT
Director

EF



BE-_T——HF=—A=+—HItFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
=F—=F —F——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FERT F#E T
Cash flows from operating REXBCHERE
activities
Profit before income tax FENE R IEEE X
from continuing and B AR5 B0 AL g A
discontinued operations 224,627 192,748
Adjustments for: KHEATFIE:
Bank interest income RAITH S WA 7 (1,587) (601)
Gain on disposals of property, HEME HBEREEZ
plant and equipment W 2= 7,8 (1,279) (158)
Allowance for impairment of FE W IE R (B 22
receivables 8 - 3,500
Amortisation of film rights 52 b hiw R 55 8 - 2,490
Amortisation of other intangible E B
assets 8 1,537 1,537
Depreciation of property, VI B REREZ
plant and equipment e 8 24,818 12,474
Equity-settled share option NEmEE 2
expenses BRERS 8 1,443 18,991
Fair value (gains)/losses on MEeRmIAEZRARE
derivative financial instruments (Uz),/Eia 7,8 (3,208) 3,710
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries B EWE AR EE 8 - 4,511
Write-down of inventories to WoRTEE &R % E
net realisable value 8 - 670
Property, plant and equipment WEEY e R E
written-off 8 - 519
Interest expenses MERAX 9 9,990 8,567
Operating profit before working BIEE B AT K E R T
capital changes 256,341 248,958
Increase in financial assets at BEARBERERKIIEREZ
fair value through profit or loss T RELE AN (79,837) =
Increase in inventories FEEm (146,187) (245,865)
Decrease/(increase) in trade e E 5 IR
receivables (&) 63,200 (27,118)
Increase in deposits, prepayments Ee EHRER
and other receivables H th i Y X IB 18 A0 (24,637) (225,286)
Increase in amounts due from JE L B 3 A - FRIE S A
related parties (28,464) (26,186)
Increase in trade payables FE1S & 5 5RIEIE AN 4,848 2,181
(Decrease)/increase in receipts TEWFRIE - EErBA X
in advance, accrued charges and H b < 3108
other payables CR ),/ (156,565) 186,952
(Decrease)/increase in amounts JFE S B E A T 5KI8
due to related parties CRA) /10 (46,438) 46,312
Cash used in operations KEXBFAR S (157,739) (40,052)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BENEEMER (2,335) (545)
Overseas tax paid B S 5 T8 (8,104) (4,482)
Net cash used in operating activities A& 2T AR & /F 58 (168,178) (45,079)
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HE-T——F=A=+—ALLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
—EF-_F —T——fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FERT F#E T
Cash flows from investing RETE2EERE
activities
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank & IR 1T 1E =
deposits A () 4,333 (30,977)
Purchases of property, plant and BEE M REE
equipment 38 (38,756) (71,365)
Prepayment for acquisition of ,@% Y E R 354
property, plant and equipment A 2 TR A (53,206) =
Disposals of subsidiaries (net of cash H& e MEB A F) (AT &
and cash equivalent disposed of) HekRESFMEEAEEB) 34 - 46,304
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWZE N L
plant and equipment Fr13 ?é’\ 5,298 180
Interest received B4 FH B 1,587 601
Net cash used in investing activites & & /Z ST IR & F 5 (80,744) (55,257)
Cash flows from financing BMETE2EESRE
activities
Capital contributions by Bt /8 A B FE R R i 2
non-controlling equity holders of BEALE
subsidiaries - 5,698
Proceeds from exercise of 1T AR R AT 15 5RIR
share options 2,873 114,941
New borrowings raised L EE 1,166,462 364,440
Repayments of borrowings BHEMEE (962,783) (328,438)
Dividends paid to the owners of MARNEHEE AR Z
the Company % 2 (44,662) (17,438)
Bank interest paid BT IRITH E (9,990) (2,472)
Net cash generated from BB BTGNS FHE
financing activities 151,900 136,731
Net (decrease)/increase in cash IEQ&}EQ%{EIE B
and cash equivalents W) A (97,022) 36,395
Cash and cash equivalents FHAzEEERE
at beginning of the year Z£EHHER 215,300 174,700
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREE) 2 S
changes, net 6,149 4,205
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ2ESRRSEEER
at end of the year 124,427 215,300
Analysis of balances of cashand ®BE&RBEESZEIEHR
cash equivalents EER DT
Cash at banks and in hand IRITRFHERE 130,382 215,300
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 30 (5,955) -
124,427 215,300




FARIRRBEE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

Non-
controlling
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests  Total equity
ERAREAES FEREE  EHEE
Share Proposed
Share Share Capital option Special  Contributed  Exchange Statutory Retained final
capital premium* reserve” reserve” reserve surplus® reserve’ reserve’ profits” dividend Total

Ra  RORE  EAEE  BREGE  GEEE  S0BR  JNERE  EERE  RERW RRAORE Ait
HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
ThEL ThAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL ThEL ThAL TAL TAL

At1 April 2010 R=Z-Z5MA-A 5372 569,782 4951 = (36,810) 95,008 4461 5328 213,651 8,059 869,802 4104 873,906
Arising from capitel njection of FERERTENES
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 5,698 5,698
Equity-settled share option amangement Mz 7 BRE R - - - 18991 - - - - - - 18991 - 18991
Issue of shares upon exercise of TRERERSIRG
share options 280 131,888 = (17,227) = = = = = = 114,94 = 114,941
Issug of shares upon conversion of X AT RRE K
convertible notes IR 300 94,368 (1,443) = = = = = = = 93,225 - 93,225
Final dividends paid for the year ended  HZ-F-F£=4
31 March 2010 (Note 14(o) =t-ALFERH
RERE (Hritiab) - - - - - (450) - - - (8,059) (8,509) - (8,509)
Interim dividends paid for the period ~~ BZ=F-ZFNA
ended 30 September 2010 =ZTALARER
(Note 14(a)) HERE (Wit14e) = = = = = (8,929 = = = = (8,929) = (8,929)
Derecognition of non-controling LENBRARRAER
interests pon disposal of RS (M)
subsidiaries (Note 34) - - - - - - - - - - - (8,716) (8,716)
Transactions with owners HEBAEZRS 580 226,056 (1,449) 1,764 - (9,379 - - - 8,059) 209,719 1982 211,701
Proft for the year AERER = = - - - - - - 183677 - 183,677 (818) 182,859
Other comprehensive income H2ERA
Release of exchange reserve upon HENBAANER
disposal of subsidlaries (Note 34) SERMRE (Hirs) - - - - - - (4,081) - - - (4,061) - (4,061)
Exchange gains on translation of REENEHZER
foreign operations i - - - - - - 4,046 - - - 4,046 - 4,046
Total comprenensive income FERRANALE
for the year - - - - - - (15) - 183,677 - 183,662 (818) 182,844
Transfer to statutory reserve BRRETER - - - - - - - 174 (174) - - - -
Release of statutory reserve upon HERBRARER
disposal of subsidiaries EERE - - - - - - - (3,558) 3,558 - - - -
Proposed final dividend for the year ~ HZ=F——£=4
ended 31 March 2011 (Note 14(a)) St-BEERZRR
RERE (Hit4a) - - - - - (29,763) - - - 29763 - - -
At 31 March 2011 i S
ZA=t-H 5,952 796,038 3,508 1,764 (36,810) 55,866 4,446 1,944 400,712 29,763 1,263,183 5,268 1,268,451
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BHE—_T——HF=—A=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

Non-
controlling
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests  Total equity
ERAREAER FeREE  RHEE
Share Proposed
Share Share Capital option Special  Contributed  Exchange Statutory Retained final
capital premium* reserve” reserve” reserve surplus® reserve’ reserve’ profits” dividend Total

Ra  RORE  EAEE  BREGE  GEEE  S0BR  JNERE  EERE RERW RRAORE Ait
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
ThEL ThAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL ThEL ThAL TAL TAL

At1 April 2011 R=F-—-5mA-A 5952 796,038 3,608 1,764 (36,810) 55,866 4,446 1,944 400,712 29,763 1,263,183 5,268 1,268,451
Equity-settled share option arangement &£ 2 BRER - - - 1,443 - - - - - - 1443 - 1,443
Issug of shares upon exercise of rEEREREARE
share options 7 3,207 - (431) - - - - - - 2813 - 2813
Final dividends paid for the year ended  HZ=F-—#=4
31 March 2011 (Note 14(o) =t-ALFERH
RERE (Hritiab) - - - - - - - - - (29,763) (29,763) - (29,763)
Interim dividends paid for the period ~~ BZ=F——FAA
ended 30 September 2011 ZTELBEER
(Note 14(a)) HERE (Mit14e) = = = = = (14,899) = = = = (14,899) = (14,899)
Transactions vith owners BEEAETZXS 7 3297 - 1,012 - (14,899) - - - (29769) 40,34) - (40,346)
Proft for the year AERER = = - - - - - - 214,188 - 214,188 (500) 213,688
Other comprehensive income 2R
Exchange gains on translation of RERNEBZER
foreign operations [lezd - - - - - - 15,202 - - - 15,202 1) 15,181
Total comprehensive income KERREUAEE
for the year - - - - - - 15,202 - 214,188 - 229,390 (521) 208,869
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETRE - - - - - - - 10,508 10,509) - - - -
Proposed final dividend for the year ~ BZ=F—-=£=4
ended 31 March 2012 (Note 14(a)) =t-BLEE 2R
RERE (Hritiaa) - - - - - (8,939) - - - 8939 - - -
At 31 March 2012 H-g-f
ZA=t-8 5,959 799,335 3,508 2,776 (36,810) 32,028 19,648 12,441 604,397 8,939 1,452,221 4141 1,456,974
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * HERERSEGEUBRAREA LK
approximately HK$1,437,329,000 (2011: HK$1,227,468,000) in the A R #91,437,329,0008 L (—ZF—— & :
consolidated statement of financial position. 1,227,468,000/# 7T ) ©
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Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church House,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are the distributorships of luxury goods. The
Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the
“PRC”) and Malaysia. During the year ended 31 March 2011,
the Group has discontinued the operations of publications
and distributions of comic books and animation development.
Details in connection with the discontinued operation and
disposal of subsidiaries were set out in notes 16 and 34.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 26 June
2012.

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time all of
the new standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new
or amended HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are relevant to
and effective for the Group’s financial statements for the year.

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new or
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have
been prepared and presented or on the Group’s accounting
policies.

T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012
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HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related party
and clarifies its meaning. This may result in changes to those
parties who are identified as being related parties of the
reporting entity. The Group has reassessed the identification
of its related parties in accordance with the revised definition
and concluded that the revised definition does not have any
material impact on the Group’s related party disclosures in the
current and previous years.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified disclosure
requirements applicable to related party transactions where
the Group and the counterparty are under the common
control, joint control or significant influence of a government,
government agency or similar body. These new disclosures
are not relevant to the Group because the Group is not a
government related entity.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group, have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

Amendments to Disclosures — Transfers of Financial

HKFRS 7 Assets'
Amendments to Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying
HKAS 12 Assets?

Amendments to Presentation of Items of Other

HKAS 1 (Revised) Comprehensive Income?®
Amendments to
HKAS 32

Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®

T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuead)

Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
HKFRS 7 and Financial Liabilities*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits*

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements*

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group has already commenced an assessment of related
impact of adopting the above new or amended HKFRSs to
the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the financial statements will be resulted.
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T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

[t should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.
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T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(see note 3.3 below) made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchases, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RAVBREREBEARTRENW
BAR (R TXMESIEBERSF
“A=t—BZz#MEHEK-

MEBARAEZEGEEEEAKE
ZAZHEGE AR MEBARER
BRI BREFILGA AR

AEERAUBEEABELTE
HARR - WEMBEAR cEEREA
BRAKEMEREE FMELA
BRABRITRAER Z ANE
BERRERBIAREBRUME
EEMEEXBEZANE KB
MK AREELER S - EXBE
B o BT U BB RT 8 B E E P Re FfT
BRERIARE  VITRENK
BEYZAREFE -AKERAE
B RIS - R A S ERIRIF AR
SEGRKET EEFE LA
FERR MR Ty < IR i et

PR (B - RAE 0 (IR
T 21 N R W BE 7 A2 ] 2 A AR AN
saERBRRzARE BHAK
BrIEAFEERARBEZEED
REE - Lz BB E R AT U BB T B
RAVFEEAREBEZREBEM
B ORERERESFSEZHKRAR
REER

63



T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group
asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interest as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interest, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interest are also recorded in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

In the consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control)
is accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
This involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were recorded in the financial statements of
the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
losses unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.
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T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 April 2005 have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into HK$ at the closing rates. Goodwill arising
on the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1 April
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A & 67
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, as follows:
Buildings 50 years or over
the term of lease, if shorter
3 to 10 years

5 to 10 years or over

the term of lease, if shorter
4 to 5 years

Furniture and equipment
Fixtures

Motor vehicles
The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation

methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

3.4

3.5
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The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of
consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired.
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For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:
Copyrights 1to 10 years
Trademarks 5to 10 years
Other intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described in note 3.19.
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The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
assets.

F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A & 71
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)

POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continueq)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management
personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

3.8 £WMEE(£)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (a) HEAALEREZZIIEZ
loss (Continued) THEE (&)
Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets ML ERE AR Z
included in this category are measured at fair value CREERAABEE M
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or AARBEEHEBREANER-
loss. Fair value is determined by reference to active AREDNREETRMERS
market transactions or using a valuation technique SR E 5 0E (04 )E BB
where no active market exists. Fair value gain MSFE) TAEE B
or loss does not include any dividend or interest BEZBERRHITTBEZES®
earned on these financial assets. Interest income is & EE P R ER 2 A A BR B sk A
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies oo T B AR 1B 5L B 7% R
in note 3.17 to these financial statements. KM ATARE R 2 BUR

(b) Loans and receivables (b) EFREWZE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A & 73
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)

POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

3.8 £WMEE(£)

& HEE R E

REREASRIEHMEE (R
ARERBRERIE 2 SREER
SN AEEE = A KR EFFER
BEER-

EREREEZEBREZRE
B AEEMAY N —HEKIA L
TIBEREHZABESE:

- BEBABLERWBERNE:

- BRAEHN WRBHIERX
R Z AR

- BEBAREAUERERET
HtH B EM: &

- Bl RBEIORRRIR
th 3R A] BE B A5 A &K A
FEZERNE-

74 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§



L
B H SRR YA

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 £WMEE(£)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches and
jewelleries included in the inventories are determined
using the first-in, first-out method while the other
inventories with different nature are determined using
the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments, are
initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments are accounted for as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accrued charges, amounts due to related
parties and borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.18).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.
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Other financial liabilities

These financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee
and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount of the guarantee,
i.e., the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Leases 3.14 HE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(a) Operating lease charges as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature of
the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Leases (Continued) 3.14 & (£&)

(a) Operating lease charges as the lessor (a) EBHAANZEREHEER
(Continued) (&)

Rental income receivable from operating leases KEME 2 RWHES AR
is recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line HERREHBUAERER
method over the periods covered by the lease BafR BmEe A
term, except where an alternative basis is more ERERMWRMFEREES
representative of the pattern of benefits to be EEFTE & 2 e 12 = Bl B
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease SN BER T HERETER
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as R R B W AR & 1 R AR
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments BHZEAKBD AT
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as HEA S HEANERR
income in the accounting period in which they are WA o

earned.

(b) Operating lease charges as the lessee (b) EBRAAZEEHEEH
Where the Group has the right to use the assets A BB REEAUEER
held under operating leases, payments made EFEZEE AIREMAE
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on EHZ e EHESRAN
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except NESEEE=MR B
where an alternative basis is more representative BEMEEET ER R
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from HEBEMEE 2 Wk
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are R BIBR SN - B W & 52 B
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the FHEETERAENEEF
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent Nz HRE S - A
rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting HMerEEEEZSTHER
period in which they are incurred. B0 -
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Revenue recognition 3.17 REER

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable for the sale of goods, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, royalties and dividends, net of returns
and discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Royalty income from the licensing of trademarks is
recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the license agreements.

Subcontracting income and other services income are
recognised when services are rendered.

Online comics viewing income is recognised on a basis
which generally coincides with the timing, when the
services are rendered.

Advertising income for advertisements on comic books
is recognised on the relevant publication date of the
Group’s comic books.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FZE

POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line method
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

3.17

3.18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

3.19 FEMEEZRE

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a CGU). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at CGU level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those CGU that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment loss recognised for a CGU, to which goodwill
has been allocated, is credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the CGU, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value-in-
use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(a)

(b)

BIKEF

18 BR KR 25 38 7 E 5K
BAREHEIRY -

AREBERERFIEREE
ElIRp SMARERSHE
REREFCRFIMERBS RN
wAEE ([sREEaTEl) <
BRERMH-—RBESFE -
ERERNEEEAFEZE
2R -

o

AEBETFEZEZHEL
Al ZERBAZINE T KT
BEZFREAKREE 1
EHBARARMSREKRE
AFEEHEERETERA

ERAREERFANREHR
BRAERDNER R -
AEERZEAHEETZE
TRREMNZEER D H#

e
SEREAAF

EEERZEZFEBENESR
A ZAKER - ARALE
BRBERE R ILPARMAR
HBmAZAFR2AFTAR
fEH B -

FEREFEFARR (AR &
R RE) R ERRAE
THRER

87



BE-_T——HF=—F=+—HItFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

(c) Share-based employee compensation (c) URGEBEBRZESHE

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on
the best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options have exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options have
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve is transferred to retained
profits.
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Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:;HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.21 fIBHEstEE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

AEBERARKMBRARZRE
MELEZERRE K EZRERE
FEFRIA BB - M AN 5 B AT A
EREZE 2RO BAAERERE
FER] 1B 5K RS K AT BE 5 ) A 8
o

BERERENRRRNEEAERE
REEMRAMERZHEFEM
BAME EABERENHERA
EEMI AR LS EM -

EEMBEEXRRBZESHIRN
B ANRER - N EREM2EK
AR EE B AR NG AZE
BAER ARNEMEmKRARER

AHBAEERAHHERER
ERUATERAFRZS

(@ AEEEREBBRHNITER]
KRS REHE &

(b) FEIVFREELEEXRRE
ERBEEMEBAG-

90 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %



L
B H SRR YA

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.21 fIBHEstEE (&)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax REBERERUTERAERZS
liabilities in net if, and only if, BREFEEEREEFHRIEA G
(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off (a) ZEBKEBRGIMITHERA
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and LA # 75 BA 574 18 & 7= ER AN B AR

HEEHE &

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax b) EEFBEEERREHRIES
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same BB R — T 8 Bt A
taxation authority on either: THEM—BREK TS

i
(i)  the same taxable entity; or () R—ERHEE: K
(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to (i) FFEIR & & K H M
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net (MEHEREEREA
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 458 sk Bl K FE 2
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period ERMIEEESEE) B
in which significant amounts of deferred tax R BRI IE
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled BEHEEXRKER
or recovered. BERESEEZTR
3.22 Segment reporting 3.22 W E

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares REBIBRBEMATES 2 MARE

segment information based on the regular internal ERPEERERNEBEBIL S X

financial information reported to the executive directors BEUZELDRBELHREZE

for their decisions about resources allocation to the AT B ERER 2 ED B R

Group’s business components and for their review of REDEHER -MRITEFTERZ

the performance of those components. The business NI T ERA 2 EB LD Tk

components in the internal financial information reported REBFZEMERBERET -

to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.
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The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except bank interest income, income tax expense,
finance costs, fair value gains or losses on derivative
financial instruments, equity-settled share option
expenses and corporate income and expenses which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets exclude corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.
These include provision for taxation, deferred tax liabilities
and borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)

POLICIES (continued)
3.23 Related parties (Continued)
(i)  (Continued)

(c) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

3.23 BEEAL (£Z)

(i)

(#&)

© RAEEFARAER
BAZTEEEAR-

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (i) HFEE T HEREG - BlRZ
following conditions apply: EREAEEHFHE

(@)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to NEIN =S NCID SR
the others). o= NCIE A R =N
) o

(o) One entity is an associate or joint venture b)) —ERERE—EEZH
of the other entity (or an associate or joint BARHAEE AR (3
venture of a member of a group of which the S—EBAKERAZ
other entity is a member). SEETHKE QR 2B

ERRHEERAT) o

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same ) MREBHRE-—F=
third party. FZEERT-

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity 0 —ERBR—F=7EE
and the other entity is an associate of the third ZaEna mME—&
entity. BAZE=HERE

VNI

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan () HREBAAKEIAE
for the benefit of the employees of the Group B fEEER 2 (E BB
or an entity related to the Group. ‘R EtEl -

()  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by () ZEEX{OBEMMAL
a person identified in (). P2 5l =k SR 5 ]

(9) A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Related parties (Continued) 3.23 BEAL (&)
Close members of the family of a person are those family ERNATZERFRB I IEEERT
members who may be expected to influence, or be B EZATHERE I RHHFE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity hEEBZHRE WELE:
and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic () BmALTzFHREEBHRARE
partner; HiaE
(o) children of that person’s spouse or domestic b) BALTZERBxXAREFEZ
partner; and TRk
(c) dependents of that person or that persons spouse () BmATHHEEMBNKEREFE
or domestic partner. BN
3.24 Discontinued operations 3.24 BRIEEEFE
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s ERIEREEB RSB XK —
business, the operations and cash flows of which can 2o HedE NIRE R E A AR fEH
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and AR EH M TR 5 o B ALK
which represents a separate major line of business or EEBRR -IERFEBILEM
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single RED B EBER  EAD
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line E—HBEERERIKEHEE D 2
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a BUYXTEXB 2 E—HEGFEZ
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. —H#D A —RAREAEE MUK
= Pl == NE|
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Discontinued operations (Continued) 3.24 BRIEEEER (£)
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon W ZEBHE B EXFEIAEFEL
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be EEBZE(UREERE)
classified as held for sale, if early. It also occurs when the Al R E RIS & 375 o U 3
operations is abandoned. B BEEB TS EACKIE
When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single WEBDBABERILEE  BlGRE
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated ZHEHWARK LE25)E — 55
statement of comprehensive income, which comprises: EFEE:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued - BERIEKEEBZHREIEE
operation; and @ &

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the — BERERLELEEBHBE
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on EXLEHEGTEAARER
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s) SHEK AN E B EMER
constituting the discontinued operation. Z BB B R E A -

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. B &t {hst & ¥ K

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are HErRAE HIREBRT SRR EMER

based on historical experience and other factors, including (BRERERBAMSHEEBEEEZR

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable REMHTER ) ETRHET G-
under the circumstances.
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The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 3.19. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the CGUs and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount
of goodwill was approximately HK$580,679,000 (2011:
HK$580,679,000). Details of the impairment assessment
are disclosed in note 19.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
with definite lives may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
assets in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.19. In assessing whether there is any indication
that other non-financial assets may be impaired, the
Group considers indications from both internal and
external sources of information such as evidence of
obsolescence or decline in economic performance of
the assets, changes in market conditions, economic
environment and customers’ tastes. These assessments
are subjective and require management’s judgements and
estimations.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED R &EBHRA & 97
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Impairment of receivables

The policy for making allowance for impairment of
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer/debtor. If the financial conditions of the
customers/debtors of the Group deteriorate thus resulting
in impairment as to their ability to make payments,
additional allowance for impairment may be required.
If the financial conditions of the customers/debtors of
the Group, on whose account allowance for impairment
has been made, were improved and no impairment of
their ability to make payments were noted, reversal of
allowance for impairment may be required.

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventories at
each reporting date, and makes allowance for impairment
of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
inventories based primarily on the expected future market
conditions and the estimated selling price. The Group
makes allowance for impairment if the net realisable value
is below the carrying amount.

4.
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and other jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
Significant judgement is required in interpreting the
relevant tax rules and regulations and determining
the amount of the provision for income taxes and the
timing of payment of related taxes. There could have
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain in the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The directors use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which are not quoted
in the active market. The fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is estimated by an
independent professional valuer with reference to the
underlying market value as disclosed in note 22. The fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Changes in the subjective input may
materially affect the fair value estimates.

4.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(g) Valuation of share option granted

The fair value of share options granted is estimated using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model at the date of
grant by an independent professional valuer. The Black-
Scholes option pricing model requires input of subjective
assumptions such as expected stock price volatility
and dividend yield. Changes in the subjective input may
materially affect the fair value estimates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have identified the following reportable
operating segments:

Trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sale services — Distribute branded cars,
namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce, and provide
related after-sale services;

Trading of branded watches — Distribute branded watches,
namely Richard Mille, DeWitt, Parmigiani and delLaCour
BiTourbillon;

Trading of branded jewelleries — Distribute branded jewelleries,
namely Boucheron, Federico Buccellati and Royal Asscher;

Trading of fine wines — Distribute certain brands of fine wines;
and

Comics and animations development — Publish and distribute
comic books, provide sub-contracting services for animations
production and distribute and broadcast animations. This
operating segment has been discontinued during the year
ended 31 March 2011.
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Each of these operating segments is managed separately

HREEmMERBEMAZEREE

as each of the product and service lines requires different SEHAHAER M EEESL O AE
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment BN EER G T2 E BT EIRER
transactions are priced with reference to prices charged to INERA T 2 B TEE -
external parties for similar order.
2012
—E2--f%
Continuing operations
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories and
provision of Trading of Trading of
after-sale branded branded Trading of
services watches jewelleries fine wines Total
RER
HEZHRK
BHEHUR £ £
REERRYE FHES LEES £EES it
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER
Revenue from external customers RENBEE 2 W5 4,187,129 187,987 35,854 16,453 4,427,423
Other income Hip A 27,914 21,067 5,919 21,247 76,147
Reportable segment revenue CE 4,215,043 209,054 41,773 37,700 4,503,570
Reportable segment results ARENDEE 250,556 8,590 272 1,621 261,039
Amortisation of other Hit @M AESH
intangible assets - (1,277) (260) - (1,537)
Depreciation of property, mE BERZIEINE
plant and equipment (11,666) (5,177) (3,711) (3,364) (23,918)
Fair value gains on financial assets at BRARERBERIIRZ
fair value through profit or loss mﬂéfizﬂﬁ Bl - - - 10,171 10,171
Operating lease payments in respect of HERFZEEHERSE
rented premises (34,507) (29,825) (10,209) (19,096) (93,637)
Sub-lease income SHEEA - 7,891 2,986 10,450 21,327
Reportable segment assets 1,310,632 253,624 93,666 241,996 1,899,918
Corporate assets:
- financial assets 19,172
- non-financial assets 3,775
Consolidated total assets REHEE 1,922,865
Additions to non-current segment assets  FRABIERE D HEE
during the year 89,878 4,890 2,958 76,189 173,915
Reportable segment liabilities ARELHEE 162,012 24,419 600 4,113 191,144
Corporate liabilities: NRIEME:
~ financial liabilities -SREE 265,497
- non-financial liabilities -FemaE 9,250
Consolidated total liabilities ReRal 465,891
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZHEER (#)
2011
2%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BAIE
Trading of
automobiles and
related parts and
accessories and
provision of Trading of Trading of Comics and
after-sale branded branded Trading of animations
services watches jewelleries fine wines development Total
RER
RHEHR
BHE SR LEHE B
REUEEHERE  ERFRES 2% LEES HEURE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T Tir
Revenue from external customers RENBEP 2z 3,070,935 137,823 16,065 61,865 36,207 3,322,985
Other income A 21,20 2,17 558 25,351 563 49,935
Reportable segment revenue TRED BRE 3,092,227 139,994 16,623 87,216 36,860 3,372,920
Reportable segment results AREDBEE 211,628 18,770 2 35,019 (16,022) 249,467
Allowance for impairment of receivables  FEMFUE R B = = = - (3,500) (3,500)
Amortisation of: &
~ film rights -¥hiE - - - - (2,490) (2,490)
- other intangible assets -EtEREE - (1,277) (260) - - (1,537)
Depreciation of property, nE KERZEINE
plant and equipment (6,042) 2,728) (1,147) (1,101) (302) (11,320)
Fair value gains on financial assets at BRAAERBREIEZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEZAAERE - - - 23,205 - 23,205
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZER - - - - (4511) (4,511)
Operating lease payments in MEBFZEEAENE
respect of rented premises (13,910) (18,847) (7,619 (6,273) (2471 (49,120)
Property, plant and equipment WENE BEREE
written-off - - - - (519) (519)
Sub-lease income AERKA - 1,473 558 1,951 - 3,962
Write-down of inventories to WRFEZAERFE
net realisable value - - - - (670) (670)
Reportable segment assets ARENBEE 1,158,546 295,603 68,309 174,868 - 1,697,326
Corporate assets: AREE:
~ financial assets -SREE 5,134
- non-financial assets —FEREE 1,463
Consolidated total assets GRBEE 1,703,923
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ £RREERB N BEE
during the year 29,707 21,094 9,609 11,930 - 72,340
Reportable segment liabilities IRENDER 345,837 19,487 1,380 4,832 = 371,536
Corporate liabilties: REBfE:
- financial liabilities -cBaR 55,103
- non-financial liabilities “FERERE 8,833
Consolidated total liabilities GRUEE 435,472
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The total presented for the Group’s operating segments

EAKELENT B

At B ELAR

reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in BV BBRERAMEIAEE 2 FEHHEH
the consolidated financial statements as follows: FHERMOT
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FRET
Reportable segment results A RE DI ELE 261,039 249,467
Bank interest income RITF B A 1,587 601
Fair value gains/(losses) on derivative ~ $T4A SR T EZ AR(E
financial instruments Wzt (E18) 3,208 (3,710)
Equity-settled share option expenses  AfEzR4EE 7 BB ARAE R X (1,443) (18,991)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROEARAX (29,774) (26,052)
Finance costs Bl & K AN (9,990) (8,567)
Profit before income tax from BERBRIEKEEELZ
continuing and discontinued B BT 15 556 /i 4 A -
operations, including loss on BRENENBRARZERE
disposal of subsidiaries 224,627 192,748

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into

the following geographical areas:

AEERBINBEP 2 W MIEREE
E(ERITAKRIMNZTIIES S

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

REMFEE 2 ERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--F —FF —F--F —FF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT FER FET

Mainland China and A R B

Hong Kong (domicile) () 4,322,970 3,320,751 729,119 664,199
Malaysia Bk 104,453 115 =
Others Hih - 2,234 - =
4,427,423 3,322,985 729,234 664,199




B

z2=-F

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. For goodwill and other intangible assets, the
geographical location is based on the entities’ area of
operation. The geographical location of other non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets.
Management determines the Group is domiciled in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, which are the Group’s principal
operating locations.

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to these
financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from
these activities.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised during

——HF=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

the year is as follows:

PR ARE RS SRR E w2 iR

RER - BENEMENEENRIAE

BR2wRAER - LMERBEEN

BAEERNGAAEMRER EEEE

i$EIZM¥m%E¢IWW&§
B AAEBzIEZREHE -

AREB 2 EZRBRAM B HRRM
BE - AEEZEERANKBUEER
Z gk o

FAERKEARERFEZXH 2 W0
T

2012 2011
—E—-—-F %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Continuing operations HREREER
Sale of automobiles REHE 4,106,277 3,016,948
Sale of branded jewelleries BRKEHE 35,854 16,065
Sale of branded watches BEFHRES 187,987 137,823
Sale of fine wines ZBHE 16,453 61,865
Income from provision of REEZREKA
after-sale services 80,852 53,987
4,427,423 3,286,688
Discontinued operation ERILEEEK
Sale of comics books /§§$%‘§§ﬁ’§ - 32,616
Sale of comics scripts BERIANHEE - 52
Sale of merchandised goods EEREEES - 860
Royalty income EFEERA - 2,727
Subcontracting income for animation ~ EE & {EMNT U A
production - 28
Online comics viewing income HMESEHBIWRA - 14
- 36,297
Total revenue B 4,427,423 3,322,985
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfWA
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
Continuing operations BESEER
Bank interest income R1T A B U A 1,587 591
Bonus from suppliers HER 4 T 2 2R, 25,554 10,698
Exchange gains, net [ 5 Ui 5 58 608 =
Fair value gains on derivative financial $TA € T A2 A R ERE
instruments 3,208 -
Fair value gains on financial assets BEAREREBERRIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREECAAERE 10,171 23,205
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEWE HWERBEZ
and equipment W = 1,279 -
Income from exhibitions REWA 903 1,767
Income from insurance brokerage RIS 4F 40 WA 14,398 7,565
Sub-lease income o HEBA 21,327 3,982
Others H At 1,907 2,155
80,942 49,963
Discontinued operation BRIEREHEK
Advertising income & & WA - 4
Bank interest income R1T A B WA - 10
Colour and manuscript income tERkEZKRA - 200
Exchange gains, net b 5 U a5 ) 58 - 20
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEME HWBERTEZ
and equipment W = - 158
Others HAb - 181
- SIS,
Total other income Hitb Yo A\ 4858 80,942 50,536

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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OPERATING PROFIT 8. R&EHmA
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
Continuing operations BESEER
Operating profit is arrived at after ESHEFBEIR, (FEA)
charging/(crediting): LATRIEH -
Amortisation of other intangible assets* £ b £ /2 & & # §# 1,537 1,537
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 1,650 1,590
Add: Under-provision in prior years moREFEERETR - 550
1,650 2,140
Cost of inventories recognised as RAERZ 2 FERAR
expense 3,975,510 2,919,521
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% Es R E 2 IrEH
equipment*# 24,818 12,172
Equity-settled share option expenses iz 4EE 2 8§ T LASH
for eligible persons other than staff EEBATHERERS - 7,313
Exchange differences, net PE W HE R (608) 4,698
Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative ~ $TE &R T A2 ARE
financial instruments** (Uezs) FEiE~ (3,208) 3,710
Gain on disposals of property, HEYE HER
plant and equipment R 2 W Es (1,279) =
Operating lease payments in respect ~ HEEF 7 K& HEFHE
of rented premises 101,879 49,017
Defined contribution retirement benefits & %8 £ 7 1& £ R (R {2 F
scheme contributions for employees FHEI KR 5,018 1,922
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIRAN BREESHE
emoluments 38,738 24,899
Equity-settled share option NEmAEE 2 B THARE
expenses for staff 53 1,443 11,678
Total staff costs and staff costs B T A B RN BEm kR
charged to profit or loss ZEIRRAK 45,199 38,499

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ EER A 7
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8. OPERATING PROFIT (continued) 8. RKERA &)
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHAT
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
Operating loss is arrived at after KEBBENR, (FTA)
charging/(crediting): LATNIEE -
Allowance for impairment of receivables* & U 2k 18 Ji & % &5+ - 3,500
Amortisation of film rights* %A R A - 2,490
Cost of inventories recognised as ERERZT 2 HFEERA -
expense, including the following BIENA TR AR ST
expenses which are also included in BRSEBBE A
the respective total amounts
separately disclosed - 19,358
— Write-down of inventories to net —WRFEEER 23R FEE"
realisable value* - 670
- Depreciation —E - 102
- Staff costs —BIKA - 7,433
Depreciation of property, plant and I - B KR 2 T E
equipment### - 302
Gain on disposals of property, HEME SR
plant and equipment R 2 W - (158)
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HEWB QR EE - 4,511
Operating lease payments in respect ~ HEEF 7 K& M EFHE
of rented premises - 2,471
Property, plant and equipment written-off* #ifl #5470 % - # 28 & &% &+ - 519
Defined contribution retirement benefits £ 8 i 7 (& 8 iR K48 F
scheme contributions for employees A& 3R - 596
Staff costs, including directors’ BEINA BREESEHe
emoluments - 15,977
Total staff costs BIKANEE - 16,573
Amounts capitalised in inventories REEERNEZ & - (585)
Staff costs charged to profit or loss REZEMkR 28 THRA - 15,988

1 06 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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The amounts have been included in cost of sales under
discontinued operation.

Amortisation of other intangible assets for continuing operations
of approximately HK$1,537,000 (2011: HK$1,537,000) has been
included in administrative expenses.

Depreciation for continuing operations of approximately
HK$18,484,000 (2011: HK$9,514,000) has been included in
selling and distribution costs and approximately HK$6,334,000
(2011: HK$2,658,000) has been included in administrative
expenses.

Depreciation for discontinued operation of approximately
HK$102,000 has been included in cost of sales and
approximately HK$200,000 has been included in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 March 2011.

The amounts have been included in other operating expenses
under discontinued operation.

The amounts have been included in other income (2011: other
operating expenses).

“HE=ZA=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

##

###

*k

EHEFABERLEEEER ZHEK
o

5B & & 5% 2 #91,637,00008 7T (=
T — —4£:1,537,000/8 7T ) H tb £ 7
BEBHECHATHRER-

FIE S E T 2 418,484,000 7T
(ZZ——%:9,514,0008 L) T EE
FTASHE R - 146,334,000
B (—ZZF——% 12,658,000 7T )
EBAITTHER-

REBEE_ZE——F=A=+—HIHF
[ B AR A & 275 2 £9102,0007% 7T
FED T AHEKA - M49200,0007%
TIMEBFTATRER -

EHEFAERLEEER ZEMEK

SHEEFAREMBA(ZE——F &
MR EER) -

2012 2011
—E——fF —EF——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Continuing operations HREREER
Interest expenses on financial liabilities X # K AR 2 SR B E
stated at amortised costs: FERE:
- bank loans and overdrafts wholly —ARAFANBHEERE
repayable within five years RITERRBX 9,990 2,461
- effective interest expenses on —AFEABRBREE 2
convertible notes for the year ERFEMAX - 6,095
9,990 8,556
Discontinued operation ERILESEEK
Interest expenses on financial liabilities X # $5 AKX AN 31 8k 2 £ B B (&
stated at amortised costs: FERE:
— other loans wholly repayable — AR AFABHEEZ
within five years Hith &% - 11
9,990 8,567
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREB X B
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BBENEH DIRBAREZ BT ERT A
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the IR E16.5% (— T ——F:16.5% )
year. Taxation on profits derived outside Hong Kong has been FHREBE KRB ABRINZBF BB
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at TR BEARFE 2 (et FEaR i m M IE A&
the rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the BEEEr AR 2 RITREHE -

Group operates.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC LZRPEBEHEER  AAFETH
is charged at 25% (2011: 18% to 25%) on deemed profits MEBARHBHIAKE Z27%E
calculated at 7% to 10% (2011: 6% to 10%) on revenue in 10% (ZF——F:6%210% )T E 2
accordance with relevant tax regulations in the PRC. T R M IL25% (ZF ——F :18% =
25% ) Z TR

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total

FELEEE BALGEEE ait
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“g--f -E-—-£ CZ§--f -F--F -2 _FT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#R TAT TER THT TEr TAT

Current tax REERE
Hong Kong: Bk

Current year TEE 666 1477 - = 666 1,477
Overseas: B

Current year FER 10,854 5,884 - - 10,854 5,884

11,520 7,361 - - 11,520 7,361

Deferred tax BERE

Current year REE (581) 2,528 - - (581) 2,528
Total income tax expense FEHY e 10,939 9,889 - = 10,939 9,889

1 08 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRBH X H (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting RERAMEAERGRE HEEgH 5T
profit at applicable tax rates: ZER:
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
Profit before income tax from FERBRIEEEERE 2
continuing and discontinued BRFTIS B AT F - 215
operations, including loss on HEMB AR ZER
disposal of subsidiaries 224,627 192,748
Tax on profit before income tax and B% BT 15 B4 AT 45 A1 Iz HE 78 i A
deemed profits, calculated at the BB RERRE
rates applicable to profits in the tax HIBRDERER 2R 2
jurisdictions concerned MEHE 8,275 2,762
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARTIW S 2 155 & (1) (17)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7 A] 13 % H 2 i 75 52 22 1,599 6,989
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZ KRBT IEEE 2
recognised W& 316 2,001
Tax effect of temporary difference not KR Z Fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁz
recognised WIS 756 37
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised $¢r§bﬁ% iﬂ&irﬂiﬁﬁw
tax losses utilised this year ZRIEEBEZ BT E (6) (1,883)
Income tax expense TS &S i 10,939 9,889
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEEE
Retirement
Salaries, benefit
Directors’ bonuses and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
e A BAKRER
EEHe 53=4:11 FHEIft R &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FTHET THER FTHET
Year ended BE-ZE-—_F

31 March 2012 ZA=Zt+—-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE -

Tong Kai Lap B ([EEE]D)

(“Mr. Tong”) 180 2,260 12 2,452
Zheng Hao Jiang 5T 1,980 - - 1,980
Zhao Xiao Dong AR (THEED

(“Mr. Zhao”) 1,200 - - 1,200

Non-executive directors: FE#iTE % :
Zhang Si Jian w2 180 - - 180
Gao Yu (“Mr. Gao”) =mE([mxE]) 180 - - 180
Qi Jian Wei HEE 180 - - 180
Independent non- BUHHTESE:

executive directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo ~ %BHA([£%4])

(“Mr. Choy”) 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong NCi= 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor &85 180 - - 180
Total = 4,440 2,260 12 6,712

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continuead) 11. EEBE (2
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and scheme  Share-based
fees allowances  contributions payment Total
RIRER kA
ESZHe  He kRl FEER ERZEX At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THET FHT THT
Year ended 31 March 2011 #HE-T——%
ZR=+-HI%E
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Tong BRE 180 1,860 12 3,072 5,124
Zheng Hao Jiang kT 1,980 - - 3,072 5,052
Mr. Zhao HEE 1,200 - - 3,072 4,272
Non-executive directors: — FHiTZE -
Zhang Si Jian REE 180 - - 614 794
Mr. Gao (appointed on BEE(RZE—ZF
30 September 2010) NA=Z+HEZMT) <o - - - 90
Qi Jian Wei (appointed on ~ EEE (R -Z—-FF
30 September 2010) NA=+REZRMT) 0 - - - <o)
Independent non-executive % HEITEE :
directors:
Mr. Choy BEL 180 - - 308 488
Lam Kwok Cheong HEE 180 - - 308 488
Lee Thomas Kang Bor FHER 180 - - 308 488
Total Gh 4,260 1,860 12 10,754 16,886
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group RRBEFEEAN AEBWHEMES M
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the e AEBIMARSE B SR IMAZRSEE
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the B2 RENVSE R 2 FE - RRIEF
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments EA - B E == N E ok Rl B BREE () B
during the years. & o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. AN ESHF AT

13.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2011: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11 above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2011: two)
individuals during the year were as follows:

EAKEANGRRFALFT HP={

“E—F ZA)RARTESF K
EZMeE RN EXHEI1HRE - FAE
NEBRL (ZF——F : ML) RS F
ALTZBET:

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
Salaries and other benefits e MHMmEF 2,781 2,681
Retirement benefit scheme R ARAE T ET B B3R
contributions 24 24
Share-based payment VAR 0 B E R 2 3k - 308
2,805 3,013
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bl 7> F 51 48 5 -
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T
21,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 T
2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
2 2

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$214,188,000 (2011:
HK$183,677,000), a profit of approximately HK$385,000
(2011: loss of HK$56,490,000) has dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

13. XX FHEE ARMGRR

RARAHER ABIELLEE B R L
214,188,000 L (=& — — F:
183,677,000/ 7T ) # » £1385,000/% 7T
2w H ( ZF ——4F : 56,490,000/ 7T
ZEB)ERARRMERRPERE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

14. DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends attributable to the year

14. KB

(@) FAFERERE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#E T
Interim dividends of HKO.5 cent  FRHAIR B & A%0.5/5 1L
(2011: HKO0.3 cent) per share ZE——F:0.3%8M)
— to existing shareholders — Ik FEBERR 14,899 8,469
- to other shareholders* — IR FE MR R - 460
14,899 8,929
Proposed final dividend of # R R HIAR B & 1R0.374 1L
HKO0.3 cent (2011: HK1 cent) ZE——F AE)
per share 8,939 29,763
23,838 38,692

(b) Dividends attributable to previous financial year,

(b) REARSHERIKNZ EL—EK

approved and paid during the year FEELMRE
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT THT

Final dividend of HK1 cent RHAIR B & A1
(2011: HKO0.3 cent) per share ZE——F:0.381)
— to existing shareholders — Rkt FEERE 29,763 8,059
- to other shareholders* — R FEMAR R - 450
29,763 8,509
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

14. DIVIDENDS (continuead) 14. R B (&

(b) Dividends attributable to previous financial year, (b)

approved and paid during the year (Continued)

Note:

Subsequent to 30 September 2010, certain share options
and convertible notes were exercised and converted
and an aggregate of 153,416,000 ordinary shares (the
“New Shares”) were issued. The holders of the New
Shares were also entitled to the interim dividend pursuant
to the relevant provisions in the Company’s Bye-
laws. Accordingly, an interim dividend of approximately
HK$460,000 was paid to the holders of the New Shares.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement of the convertible
notes, the holders of convertible notes were also entitled
to an equivalent amount of final dividend per share for
the year ended 31 March 2010, namely As-if dividend,
in the event of any capital distribution being declared on
the shares. Accordingly, final dividend of approximately
HK$450,000 was paid to the holders of convertible notes
during the year ended 31 March 2011.

)
/

RERSHERIKN 2 £ —BEK
FERERE (&)

GhE

RZZ—ZFAA=1+RH% &
T RE AR I AT AR SRR IETT (R
W LA KA $£153,416,0008%
TER([FFRMD])EEIT IR
BARARZARMAGBIE]
FRMD A ATNE EERP B
Boo A It - A Hi R B 49460,000
BILBIRMNTHROFTAEA

BB ATRR R 2 REHZ W
AR B IR E A AR A 2R + Bl AT
MIREEFE ANMERERBS
REE=ZZ—ZTF=A=+—H
IFEEZBRABREZEE
BIfR AR S - It REARR B4
450,000 TEREZ =T ——
F=RA=+—RALFERNFA

BMBREEFAA

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of a AKRARESEZUARRR ZHARBRH
final dividend out of the contributed surplus of the Company HE_T——F=-A=+—HLFER
of HKO0.3 cent per ordinary share, totalling approximately BERERR0.SBII RIS - 2%
HK$8,939,000 in respect of the year ended 31 March #73%8,939,000/8 7T ° sZ R B BF AR 7]
2012. Such a dividend is to be approved by the Company’s RENEERRBERE LHE - FIR
shareholders at the upcoming Annual General Meeting. The % B 48 P AN B S ¥R 3k B R A FE S AR
proposed dividend has not been reflected as a dividend B EgerRRABE_ZT——F=H
payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as ST HALFEZHABHBER-

an appropriation of contributed surplus for the year ended 31
March 2012.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED R &EBHRA &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15. BRBF (FE)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share EREALREERT,(BE)HRE
are based on: TP SIHATHE -
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F& T
From continuing operations BEREEL
Profit from continuing operations FHE L X152 A 213,688 198,882
Results attributable to non-controlling — #FE4F & 275 2 JEIF R =5
interests from continuing operations i 500 430
Profit attributable to the owners of BB E X 2 ARF]
the Company from continuing B ANEERA
operations 214,188 199,312
From discontinued operation ERILEEEK
Loss from discontinued operation ERIEEE RS 2 EBE - (16,023)
Results attributable to non-controlling B #& I &8 & 27~ JF %
interests from discontinued e m B A
operation - 388
Loss attributable to the owners of BRIEEEEB 2 A RT]
the Company from discontinued HmE AEEERE
operation - (15,635)
From continuing and discontinued #HERERIEEEET
operations
Profit attributable to the owners of the  ZANA &I A A FEAE i K
Company 214,188 183,677
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E-FT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average of 2,978,405,069
(2011: 2,823,130,463) ordinary shares in issue during the
year ended 31 March 2012.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the adjusted weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share
was calculated based on the weighted average of
2,978,405,069 (2011: 2,823,130,463) ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 March 2012 as used
in the calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share plus
the weighted average of 2,596,800 (2011: 3,323,512)
ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration
as if all the outstanding share options had been
exercised.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group entered into
agreements to dispose of its entire interests in Jade Dynasty
Multi-media Development Limited (“JDMM”) and Jade Dynasty
Holdings Limited (“JDH”) and their respective subsidiaries, the
disposals were completed on 27 April 2010 and 18 November
2010 respectively. The operation of the publications and
distributions of comic books and animation development
carried out by JDH and JDMM and their respective subsidiaries
up to the dates of disposals was presented in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as a discontinued operation.

BREAXREF, (EE) HREE
E-_E——_F=A=+—HBHItF
ERNUNGIE: -SSR DN LoD ¥ |
(BE)BRAE BT Z AR INET
19 #2,978,405,0690% ( =& — —
£ :2,823,130,4630% ) 5+ & o

FREBRN, (BE) DRESF
NARAEEFEAEERRN,
(Eﬁ?@)fﬁﬁl\uaﬁéﬁa 1B AR B
B B E

REtESREBEERF, (E1E)
2 E RN E TR A
FEEREARAN(BE)Z
Eti_?if_i—ﬂ—JrfEi
FEDETERRMETAH
2,978,405,069% (=& — — % :
2,823,130,463% ) 5 hn 8 &0
BARUTEERED ETHE MK
RIEEBEERT 2 ERRMNET
¥ 802,596,800 (=& — —F :
3,323,512/% ) 5t &

BHE_Z——F=A=+—BILF
B -AEEDF M HEDSHRJade
Dynasty Multi-media Development
L|m|ted(UDMMJ) FEHAERER
T(FEEEHJ)&EZ&“‘TREZW
RAZEHMER - HEFTHEEH AR
:%*giﬂﬂ_+t5&:%*§¢
T—A+NBZEX - E2FH  JIDMMKRZ
ZENAEEZHBARREZ LS A H
IEREBZHREBITEEERUARYE
BREK CRAKBZEAMB®RE
I RELIERERR-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 16. ORI REXE (=)

REBE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE
FAGAEEHARABRKRRGEHEERE
RIERUIEEEXBZXENRERE

An analysis of the results and cash flows of discontinued
operation included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash

flows for the year ended 31 March 2011 is as follows:

DT

Notes HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET

Loss for the year from BRI EER 2 NEFEEHIE:

discontinued operation:
Revenue I & 6 36,297
Cost of sales $H 5 B AR (33,888)
Gross profit EF 2,409
Other income E b A 7 573
Selling and distribution costs HE RREKA (1,665)
Administrative expenses THEHR (8,799)
Other operating expenses HEAfbag & & A (4,019)
Operating loss KRR 8 (11,501)
Finance costs BB B A 9 (11)
Loss before income tax B BT 1S 5 A 5 18 (11,512)
Income tax expense s h 10 =
Loss for the year REEEE (11,512)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR EE (4,511)
Loss for the year from BRIEEEEE 2 ANFEEIR

discontinued operation (16,023)
Cash flows used in discontinued ERIEEEXEBTARSRE

operation:
Net cash used in operating activities KEXSFTAR S F58 (1,737)
Net cash generated from WEEEFSHE TR

investing activities 190
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEEE o2 FH

changes, net 650
Net cash outflow e FRE (897)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - HBRKRE

GROUP R EE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
GR-RER
¥ R RE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZE-ZFMA—H
Cost %N 447 31,737 6,747 38,931
Accumulated depreciation Z:t#rE - (11,644) (2,929) (14,573)
Net carrying amount FEEE 447 20,093 3,818 24,358
Year ended BE2-2——%

31 March 2011 ZA=+-BILFE
Opening net FFEAEE

carrying amount 447 20,093 3,818 24,358
Exchange differences fE X =5 5 398 54 457
Additions NE = 57,085 15,493 72,578
Disposals & - - 22) 22)
Write-off s - (619) - (519)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ H&EH B A7 (FiFE34)

(Note 34) (452) (4,012) (311) (4,775)
Depreciation neE — (10,211) (2,263) (12,474)
Closing net carrying FRFEEE

amount - 62,834 16,769 79,603
At 31 March 2011 and ~ RZT——F

1 April 2011 ZA=+—HK

—E——%MmA—AH
Cost A - 78,446 20,533 98,979
Accumulated depreciation Z:f#TE = (15,612) (3,764) (19,376)
Net carrying amount FIRE(E - 62,834 16,769 79,603
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BI|RRE (#)
(Continued)
GROUP (Continued) RER (&)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
BR - KER
BF ®#E RE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTAET FAET FAET
Year ended BE-Z——-&
31 March 2012 ZA=t+-BLEFE
Opening net FFERAEE
carrying amount - 62,834 16,769 79,603
Exchange differences fER =% = 2,666 781 3,447
Additions WE - 15,428 23,328 38,756
Disposals & - - (4,019) (4,019)
Depreciation neE — (18,866) (5,952) (24,818)

Closing net carrying FREFREE

amount - 62,062 30,907 92,969
At 31 March 2012 i g3

EFEr=1[
Cost X AR - 97,212 39,581 136,793
Accumulated depreciation Zit#TE - (35,150) (8,674) (43,824)

Net carrying amount FREE 62,062 30,907 92,969
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 18. B ARER RMEB AR Z
SUBSIDIARIES “E R
COMPANY KA T
2012 2011
—E—C—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT Tt
Unlisted shares, at cost* JE LR A A - -
- The aggregated investment costs in subsidiaries were less than a * MEARZBIREKAIR—FITe

thousand dollar.

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and WEBARZAHMAEER 28 RIKRE
repayable on demand. KIEE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 are RZEBE——F=A=1+—HzZTEWNE
as follows: RAEZ BT
Place/country of Percentage of
incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
EMAL/ RIS ARRRHER
WEAR AR ERREEERER Fifs R AR RAEE BREAE IEERREEHY
Carnaby Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share United States 100%*  Investment holding, BVI
(‘BVI), limited dollar (‘US$”) 1
liability company
RERAHES Bk EA(ETA)) 100%* REZR RBELHES
((RBRXEE]) -
BRAR
Sparkle Roll (France) Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding,
company Hong Kong
BR (5B BRA R RRELHES: Bk E 100% REZKR BF
BRAR
Sparkle Roll Fine Wine Limited BVI, limited liability Ordinary share US$1 100%  Trading of fine wines,
company Hong Kong
BREBREXERAR RRERES EER E 100% HREES EF
BRAR

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 18. B AT ER KRB AT Z

SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

ek (#)
AT (B)

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
EMERL,/ RIS ARRFHER
WEARER BXRREEEREN FrisRAE R RAHEE EREAL FEERREERY
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HKS$1 100%  Trading of branded
liability company jewelleries and provision
of management service,
Hong Kong
BR (BB)BRAT RV LER 187 100% BEFEEHUR
REUEERRE BE
Sparkle Roll International Distributions Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$100 100%  Trading of branded
Limited liability company watches, fine wines and
wine futures, Hong Kong
BRERREFRAA RV LER 100787 100% BRFE ABERBE
85 &%
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewelry Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100%  Trading of branded watches
liability company and branded jewelleries,
Hong Kong
BRERKZERAF B ARAR LAk BT 100% REFEREMGELS:
Bk
Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited? The PRC, limited Paid-up capital Renminbi (‘RMB”) 100%  Trading of automobiles
liability company 60,500,000 and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
ERERAEESERAT HEEREERA EWER ARB(TARE]) 100% AEREEZHRENES
60,500,0007T ARRRER R &
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Motors Trading Limited® liability company and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
EREFERAKAEEHERLA hE BREEAF EWER ARE 100% AEREEZHRENES
49,000,0007% ARIR R E R R - &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

18. B AR EZRHMEB AT Z
ek om)

COMPANY (Continued) AT (E)
Place/country of Percentage of
incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
EMAL/ RIS ARRFHER
WEARER BXRREEEREN FrisRAE R RAHEE EREAL FEERREERY
Dalian Bo Yi Motors Trading Limited? The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 51%  Trading of automobiles
liability company and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
AEBEAEESERAH HE BREEDH EWER N 51% ABEREBRZHREGES
10,000,0007C ARRBERRE o
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited* liability company (2011: and related parts and
RMB2,000,000) accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
RAEERFEEHERARAA hE BREELRF BWRER AR ¥10,000,0007C 100% AEREHEHERENES
(ZB——%: ARREERRTE DE
AR #2,000,0007)
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB45,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited? liability company (2011: and related parts and
RMB20,000,000) accessories and provision
of after-sale services,
the PRC
REEEREEFERERDA HE BREEDH EWER AR #45,000,0007 100% SEREETHREEES
(Z2—%: ARREERRE PE
AR %20,000,0007T)
Richmile (Shanghai) Commerce & The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Trading Limited® liability company (2011: watches and branded
HK$1,000,000) jewelleries and provision
of consultancy services,
Hong Kong
BE (LB BEERAR HEBEREMERA ERER AR ¥10,000,0007C 100% BEFEREBKEEZSH
(ZB——%: A RIR AR &

1,000,003 7T )
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

18. B AR RMB AT Z
=32 4¢ )

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

COMPANY (Continued) AT (&)

Place/country of

Percentage of

incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
EMERL,/ RIS ARRFHER
WEARER BXRREEEREN FrisRAE R RAHEE EREAL FEERREERY
Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading The PRC, limited Paid-up capital HK$40,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited* liability company watches, branded
jewelleries and fine
wines and provision of
consultancy services,
the PRC
BRER (AR)BHERBRAA hE BREELF EWER 40,000,000 7T 100% BEFER BRKEREE
B R E AR
i
Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%  Property investment for
Development Limited? liability company rental purpose,
the PRC
ERBRARNEEERERDA hE BREELRF BWRER AR ¥49,000,0007C 100% WEREFELERR FE
Sparkle Roll Retail Net Malaysia, limited Ordinary share US$1 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited liability company watches, branded
jewelleries and fine wines,
Malaysia
BRTEBRERERAF SREZ FRAF saliie E 100% AEFER BRRKEREE
85 BRAD
Sparkle Roll Aerial Advertising The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,500,000 100%  Provision of marketing and
Multi-media Limited? liability company advertising services,
the PRC
PREREPEEEEERAR HEBEREMERA BWRER AR ¥49,500,0007C 100% RETSREERE FE
Sparkle Roll Xin Jing Jie Public The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100%  Provision of public relation
Relation Planning Limited? liability company (2011: and marketing services,
RMB32,600,000) the PRC
ERBRAERRHREBRAA hE BREELF EWER AR ¥49,700,0007C 100% REKBRE LTSRS
(ZF——F: H
AR #32,600,0007)
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

18. B AR EZRHMEB AT Z
ek om)

AN

all

NN

[ 43 )
(25 /

COMPANY (Continued) A
Place/country of Percentage of
incorporation/ effective
establishment and Class of Nominal value interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held of capital the Company  place of operations
EMAL/ RIS ARRFHER

WENEERE BXRREEEREN FrisRAE R RAHEE EREAL FEERREERY

Sparkle Roll Xin Hang Xiang International  The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,900,000 100%  Provision of transportation
Transportation Agency Limited liability company (2011: RMB500,000) and storage services,
(formerly known as Beijing Bu Lao Ke the PRC
Commerce & Trading Limited)t

PRERFARBEREEREERAT  HE BREEAA EWER AR #49,900,0007T 100% REEHRGERYE FE
(A ERTEZERERRAR) (Z2—%:

AR #500,0007T)

Sparkle Roll Xin Fa Xian International The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,300,000 100%  Trading of artwork and
Artwork Limited (formerly known as liability company (2011: RMB500,000) provision of culture and
Beijing Jin Xin Fang Yuan Technology art exchange activities
Trading Limited)" services,

the PRC

T RBRAEREREMRARA A HEBEREMERA ERER AR ¥49,300,0007C 100% BfimEHURREXE

(A L REBHENBERAA) (Z2——%: RmEDRSE R E
AR #500,0007)

Sparkle Roll Xin Gai Nian Business The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB40,500,000 100%  Provision of corporate
Management Limited (formerly known liability company (2011: RMB500,000) management and
as Beijing Rui Chi Fu Lan Technology consultancy services,
Development Limited)* the PRC

PRERAH S EEERERAA HE BREEAF EWER AR 40,500,000 100% RECEERRFARS
(BT RS RER R ERARAR) (ZF—%: HE

AR #500,0007T)

Beijing Yi Ma Fei Te Motors Trading Limited The PRC, limited Paid-up capital RMB8,500,000" 100%  Provision of consultancy
(formerly known as Beijing An Tai Jia Shi liability company (2011: RMB30,000) services, the PRC
Information Consultant Limited)"

IREBFFIEESERAHA HE BREEDH EWER AR %8,500,0007T" 100% REAARS 2E
(A ERZREEERFABRAR) (Z2—%:

AR#30,0007)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 18. B AR RMB AT Z
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) R (E)
COMPANY (Continued) AT (E)
t The English names of these subsidiaries established in the PRC t HARZERFBIK Y 2 M B A R I &

represents management’s best effort at translating the Chinese
names of these subsidiaries as no official English names have
been registered.

* Directly held by the Company.

On 17 April 2012, the authorised capital and paid-up capital
have been increased from RMB8,500,000 to RMB64,600,000
and from RMBS8,500,000 to RMB38,500,000 respectively. On
3 May 2012, the paid-up capital has been further increased to
RMB64,600,000.

FEMPIER XA - B ZFRX A
WHHEEERSASINZENE
REZHXHEBZ

HARREERA -

RZZE—ZFWEA++EH ZFEERR
REWERE 5 BB ARS8,500,000
LI ME AR #64,600,0007T & H
AR #8,500,000T#IMNE AR
38,500,000 - R—F——FH A=
A BEREABE-—SHEMEARE
64,600,0007T °

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in EREINARBDEETREEIERELRF
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected EXEIENAEBEEFEEEZND
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the ZARNBIMBRAR -ARBEERE"
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries BRHEMHBRARZFHE B<ER
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in BRITE °

particulars of excessive length.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

19. GOODWILL 10. BB &

GROUP AEE

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as R ZFREMERN AT

follows:

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At beginning of the year RE]
Gross carrying amount R B 580,679 724,580
Accumulated impairment REtRE - (127,246)
Net carrying amount FEREE 580,679 597,334
Year ended 31 March HE=A=+—HLLFE
Opening net carrying amount FH2FRME 580,679 597,334
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB AR - (16,655)
Closing net carrying amount FRZ2FREE 580,679 580,679
At end of the year PGS
Gross carrying amount AR (A 580,679 580,679
Accumulated impairment 2ERE - -
Net carrying amount FIREE 580,679 580,679

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§
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The main changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during
the year ended 31 March 2011 resulted from impairment of
previously recognised goodwill.

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any allowance for
impairment, is allocated to the CGU of the business of trading
of automobiles and related parts and accessories and provision
of after-sale services.

The recoverable amounts for the CGU of the business of
trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories and
provision of after-sale services as at 31 March 2011 and 2012
were determined based on value-in-use calculations based on
cash flow projections from formally approved budgets, covering
a detailed five-year budget plan, followed by an extrapolation
of expected cash flows at the growth rates below. The growth
rates reflect the long-term estimated average growth rates for
the product lines of the CGU.

——HF=FA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE_T——F=A=1t—HIEFE"
?ﬁ@ﬁEETﬁZIE """"" @XQ@TEE‘EEWL
BB ZRE -

ARz REERMREAREERER D
FEERERBBETN REIHE S A RIE
HERRBEEHREELE M-

R_T——FR-_T——F=ZA=+—

H - REREESHREGE SRR
HERKRBESRESCEESEM ZAIKE
CENREREENEE KIBFEER
WEBESLEZRERETEA CREF
R AFEEE)  WAKBER TG
REBEH2ERRESREET - 5 R
RERMBECELEBNERBRIRER
TR

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are: FRHEBHEEZEZ/IMOT
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
Growth rates HRE 20% 20%
Discount rates B35 & 15% 15%

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast
and research. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports.
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value-in-use of the CGU above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates.

IK{EJ“TJ@F‘;ﬂ&i‘%ﬁ S E

AT % TR R SRR 3T 2 T35 10 RE TR DA
@:fjfﬁ FrER A 2 I 1938 R R 81T
EWMEME B — B FERAZME
ETHBRLATIESE - W R ERABRE 5 30 2
E [ fax o

MET LM SEEEN ZFREER
Frifiz ZR AR AEEEIEERE
A S FFE ) E A ] B2 G B = E (b At
EIEEH M EEY o &
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T——"F=ZFA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31

March 2012

Copyrights Trademarks Total
hix #E BE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
T T TAT TAT
At 1 April 2010 MR-ZE-—ZFMH—H
Gross carrying amount AR A 16,506 7,752 24,258
Accumulated amortisation 2 51 # 4 (11,621) (2,298) (13,919)
Accumulated allowance Z2EPRBEERS
for impairment (4,885) - (4,885)
Net carrying amount FERMEE - 5,454 5,454
Year ended HE-Z—F
31 March 2011 ZA=+T—BLEE
Opening net carrying FYFEREE
amount - 5,454 5,454
Amortisation charges S - (1,537) (1,537)
Closing net carrying FHREFERDME
amount - 3,917 3,917
At 31 March 2011 and R-T——
1 April 2011 ZA=+—HX
—E——FMHA—H
Gross carrying amount HBEREE - 7,601 7,601
Accumulated amortisation 2 & # £ - (3,684) (3,684)
Net carrying amount FEREE - 3,917 3,917
Year ended BE-Z2——F
31 March 2012 ZA=+—-BLEE
Opening net carrying FYFEREE
amount - 3,917 3,917
Amortisation charges S - (1,537) (1,537)
Closing net carrying FRFEREME
amount - 2,380 2,380
At 31 March 2012 NR-T——F
=A=t+—H
Gross carrying amount HBEREE - 7,601 7,601
Accumulated amortisation 2 &t # £ - (5,221) (5,221)
Net carrying amount FIRMEE - 2,380 2,380
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

21. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 21. BEAL ZERR

GROUP AEE

(a)

(b)

Rental deposits paid to related parties

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered
into several agreements with Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr.
Qi"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, and his
close family member for leasing of properties as office
premises, bonded warehouse and showrooms in the
PRC to the Group. The rental deposits of approximately
HK$14,232,000 have been recognised as non-current
assets as at 31 March 2012.

Amount due from a related party

The amount due from Mr. Qi resulting from prepaid rental
expenses for leasing of properties as office premises,
bonded warehouse and showrooms in the PRC to the
Group is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand but the directors expect such amount would
be utilised through setting off of future rental expenses
payable to this related party within one year.

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 &

ENfEEALTHEEE

REBEE-_T——F#=A=+—H
IEFE AEBEANFAZEER
REARWHEE ([BAEE])REEAE
AEBRRAAEEREEE TR
FRECMEERDE -RUEE
REBEIVETHR Heken
14,232,000 TER =T —=4F
A=+ HHERABIRBEE-

Bk —EBEANLFHE

AptmAEEBES TR+ H
ZMEER DR REBEREE
ENzHEeRAXMERELEEZ
FAREEA  RERBRERE
B HEFEHNERSBE/ELE
HR—FARNZBEALZR
REEFAXTASHA-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

21. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

(Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

(c) Amounts due to related parties

rEHE (&)

(c) ENEEALFE

21. BEAT Z2&E& (&)

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Mr. Qi e 31 - “ e
Beijing Heng Yu Da Ye IEREFARERERR AR
Investment Limited (Note (i)) CRf3EG)) - 41,685
Beijing Alaimani Restaurant IRMEERERER
Management Company BRAT (HFEG)
Limited (Note (i) 2,276 -
2,276 46,448

Note:

M5 -

(i)

Mr. Qi has beneficial interests in these related companies.
The English names of the related companies established
in the PRC represents management’'s best effort at
translating the Chinese names of these companies as no
official English names have been registered.

Amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. All amounts are short-term and hence
the carrying values are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§

() BEEBEZRSWELRZER
g NPBERLZEERRZ
RXBELEEEBRZEARZ
PXEBEIBERS REAR
ZEARALEFLEXNKXS
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RKEE - MASEABEHEE
WEEERES BB ARARE
& e



L
B S R AR YA

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. EARERERRIEZSH

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group acquired
certain wine futures at acquisition cost of approximately
HK$69,666,000. These wine futures were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 March
2012, the fair value of these wine futures, determined by a firm
of independent professional valuers by using market-based
approach with reference to the underlying value of the wines in
the market, amounted to approximately HK$79,837,000. The
gain of approximately HK$10,171,000 (2011: HK$23,205,000)
arising from the changes of the fair value of the wine futures
have been recognised in profit or loss for the year and included
in other income as disclosed in note 7.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part of
changes in working capital in the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

BE
A%

REBEEZZT——F=A=+—AHLHF
S - AN & B3 4969,666,000/% 7T 2 U iE
RAWEE THE 2SHEDERIR
AARERBERIIEZEMEE R
T——_F=A=1+—H ZEHEzA
S B %) A79,837,0008 7T KB &
EHEMITEAMBEEELLZ2RBRAHER
mis Lz iEABEEE - BEAAESE
B FTEE £ 2 W25 4910,171,0008 70 (=
T — —4F : 23,205,000/ 7T ) B R A F

EzBmP R WM 7 AR A
HAUA o
BARERBRRINEZEHEER

EHREREREERH— nWﬁlJ{’E%@

Ba#eH—8n

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

23. INVENTORIES 23. &
GROUP A
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Raw materials and consumables R M KX H FE 23,520 10,623
Merchandised goods & 485,129 342,846
508,649 353,469
As at 31 March 2012, included in merchandised goods is an R-E——F=A=+—H BmeHk

amount of approximately HK$49,395,000 (2011: Nil) which
was pledged for bank loans of approximately HK$54,730,000

(2011: Nil) (Note 30).

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

7 8(#949,395,0008 L (—F—— %
)2 2% B 5L454,730,0008 T (=

T——5F E) ZRTEREER (ME

30) °

24, EWWE Z 1B

GROUP rE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT TFAIT
Trade receivables W E 5518 29,529 90,625
Less: Allowance for impairment of B EINE BRI B EE
trade receivables - -
Trade receivables, net EWE 55k IE F 5 29,529 90,625

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, BRE 5 RE(#)

GROUP (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date,
based on the invoice dates, and net of impairment losses, is as

rEE (&)

ERNBE R B RN ER IR 2 B
BEHRERBE B ZRESITAOT :

follows:
2012 2011
—EB-—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
0 - 30 days 0%230H 20,698 58,785
31 — 60 days 31%E60H 7,143 30,513
61 — 90 days 61290H 256 273
Over 90 days B0 H 1,432 1,054
29,529 90,625
It is the Group’s credit policy that sales to retail customers AEBEHRTERFPHECEEIRE

are mainly on receipts in advance from customers or cash on
delivery while sales to wholesale customers are mainly on a
credit basis up to 12 months.

ERARERKERMA - A B =
EPHEZEERRAUEEZRRZ12(E
HZiEEH-

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding AEBSKEERKEEKE HHIAE
trade receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise ITRRASEE AR FIEEE BRI
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the B EERR - EEE T HEMa S
management. ko

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the remaining trade receivables which are expected to be
recovered within one year is not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods on their inception.

ARAEZERR BRHBTRKE SR
B (AR —FAKE) h s ARRE
ERESMAIS WRERBAZANE
EHRMEYEERER-

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFJE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. BIWE Z FIE (&)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are denominated BWE S HRBEZREEBEN T EEE
in the following currencies: B:
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT T T
RMB AR 29,529 43,125
HK$ BT - 47,500
29,529 90,625
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade EWE ZHIBREEFBEZHNOT -

receivables is as follows:

2012 2011

—E-CF —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

Balance at beginning of the year F &R - 1,625
Allowance for impairment recognised 2R F RN < (B EE

during the year - 3,500
Derecognised upon disposal of & M B A B4 #R Bk TR

subsidiaries - (5,125)

Balance at end of the year FIREERR - =

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£BEER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§
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At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables for
evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective
basis. Trade receivables of HK$3,500,000 were determined as
individually impaired during the year ended 31 March 2011.
The impaired trade receivables were due from customers
experiencing financial difficulties that were in default or
delinquency of payments. No allowance for impairment was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are
not impaired is as follows:

——HF=FA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

RERE R AEERRRER & &8
%ﬁ%ﬁﬁmmﬁﬁfﬁﬁnﬁ R

RNBE_ZT——F=A=+—HIEF
[ - A& EEE R E 5 5/IE3,500,000
BT EE R E - 2R EEKE S I8

REEREEH PR BEFIE

WEaHRNHERER - REBEET
——F=ZA=+—HLFE TEER
B LEAE o

%

7R R B 5 O 2 B A
mF

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHExT F&TT

Neither past due nor impaired AR B 75 R R B 29,529 65,834
Not more than 1 year past due B H R B R — 4 - 24,791
29,529 90,625

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to certain customers from whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to independent customers that had a good track record with
the Group. Based on the past credit history, management
believed that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were considered fully
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of
trade receivables past due but not impaired.

I AR A B RBE 2 B E 5 IR TR
BETHOREBROLEZIRTF -

EEHERREZEEEZKATIIRE
EASBEERIFBAEREZIBILEP -
REBEBEEERE EEERE AR
FEEERYENRAEAES EHER
WA/ & E - WBBERUFE &
EHREEE AREYEHDBHE
ABEZEKESKEARAEMER

[}
anA °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

25. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES

Be FARARERHEMER
A

GROUP RE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
Current portion: RENE D :
Deposits bi s 25,587 25,146
Prepayments for purchase of goods BEERZBHNIE 284,474 203,012
Other receivables E b pE W 5008 64,375 109,568
374,436 337,726
Non-current portion: FERBE D
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BB HERRE 2
plant and equipment TR IE 53,206 =

As at 31 March 2011, included in other receivables, a
balance of approximately HK$58,000,000 receivable from a
counterparty in connection with the disposal of the Group’s
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss would be
settled under a repayment schedule by instalments within one
year.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
other receivables which are expected to be recovered within
one year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

R_E——F=ZA=+—H HaEK
HIEF REHEREEEZEALERER
FIRZEMEER K —BHFHHNIE
482 %758,000,00078 L A — F MR E
& 5 HAEE -

ARRIEFTRA B EME WA
(RN —FAKRE) Z EekmFEEA
RRENEHANIEY RZEREZR
AEEHEFEAETESERER-

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT 26. BRI ERREBTRERFE

BANKS AND IN HAND

GROUP AND COMPANY

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Certain of the Group’s and the Company’s
bank deposits have been pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 30). As at 31 March 2012,
the deposits bore interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.30%
per annum (2011: 0.01% to 2.75% per annum) which are
closed to the market interest rates. The pledged bank deposits
will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair value of
the pledged bank deposits is not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the short maturity period on their
inception and the bearing of market interest rates.

Included in cash at banks and in hand of the Group is
approximately HK$94,197,000 (2011: HK$133,062,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB and is placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

RBe

IRITHEB 2 B THIRE BRITFERF
KB E -AEBERARAAE TR
TERCIEERFR URSAEEERZ
—MIBTEE (MF30) - RZ=ZT—=
F=ZA=1+—"HB BRAFFENT
0.01%%E3.30% (ZF——F :0.01%=
2.75% ) & B - B TS A K - B KRR
TERERNENERRITEEERR -

ARBEERR ARBERRITER
B RFAREREHARIE  WiRH
SRR MRFFRZARNERR
RHEYTEERER-

AREBZHRITRFERSBEY
94,197,000t (=& — — & :
133,062,000/ 7T ) 2 RITAE 88+ TILAA
REFE UHFERFEZETAR AR
AR ERARAHMENE - RIFEHE
ZHNEBEIRIEOI RAEE SERMNES
BRTE AEERERKRELCEINIE
HMEBZBITHAREIBRAEME
mo

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ EER A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27.

GROUP

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables as at the
reporting date:

P & 5 R

AEE

ENEZHREREE R Z KRR D0

T

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

0 - 30 days 0Z30H 11,855 12,248
31 - 60 days 31Z60H 4,597 1,246
61 — 90 days 612908 600 80
Over 90 days HBiBI0H 3,383 1,864
20,435 15,438

All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying values are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

PARESBREHEE Hit BHEK
EEHERASSBMENABERES -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ BHER A f

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_T——F=ZA=Z+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 201

2

28. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED 28. EWMAIE -EFFERARHEHM
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES P& {5 Fh 18
GROUP AND COMPANY AEBRAEAF
Group Company
REE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—CF —E——4F —E—C—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FBx FHET
Current portion: REBS:
Receipts in advance TBUE P ZIE
from customers 145,755 249,994 - -
Accrued charges e & A 1,746 6,790 910 1,418
Other payables H h fE 1 FUOR 18,907 50,638 - =
166,408 307,422 910 1,418
Non-current portion: FRE ;S :
Other payables H h fE 1 FOR
(Note (a)) (KfzE(a) ) 3,089 3,666 - =

The carrying amounts of current portion of accrued charges
and other payables are short-term and hence their carrying
values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair
value.

Note:

(@)  The Group enjoys a rent free period on leasing of office premises
and showrooms ranging from 3 to 10 years (2011: 3 to 10
years). This lease incentive received is recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments.

At ER R EMENFIAZ RB D Z
FREEBEHEED Rt AEKEE
KR SAEMERERE -

GEE

(@ AEEREERL=ENERERBEEN
FIZ10F (ZE——F:3F105F) 2
R E - LB E W E 2 10 & 2R T
BaER A EFFIRAEZ AKX

73

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
GROUP

The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate
exchange rate exposure of Euros (‘EURQ”) against HK$. The
foreign currency forward contracts are stated at fair value,
which have been measured as described in note 41.7. During
the year, net fair value gains of HK$3,208,000 were credited to
“fair value gains on derivative financial instruments” in the other
income, which is also the carrying amount of these foreign
currency forward contracts.

9. fTET®MTIERA
AEE

REEF AINES RIS LR E T (B
T RAB T2 EEREE - INERHE A
EREMN 7S AFE 2R AET]
B o F N - A E Y a3 553,208,000
Tat AEMIRARZ [TTHEEfI A2
NAEWE]  ZEBEITAZINEER
HE&# 2 REE -

30. BORROWINGS 30. 6 &
GROUP AND COMPANY AEBRAEAF
Group Company
rEE KA T
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—CF —E——4F —E—C—F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAER FAET FAR FAT
Current portion: )ﬁﬁl"‘ﬂﬁ :
Bank loans, secured BER(FEM) 18,132 53,665 - —
Bank loans, guaranteed EFR(BER) 74,976 = 14,000 =
Bank loans, secured iR Tgm& (BIKE K
and guaranteed ER) 109,370 - - =
Bank overdrafts, RITBEL (BEAR
secured and ER)
guaranteed 5,955 - - -
208,433 53,665 14,000 -
Non-current portion:  FFRE M2 :
Bank loans, guaranteed $R/TE R (H#ER) 56,000 = 56,000 =
264,433 53,665 70,000 -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

30. BORROWINGS (continued) 30. (5 & (&)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

At the reporting date, total current and non-current bank loans

TEBRAEQTR (£F)

REER R RIFRBRITERLE

and overdrafts were scheduled to repay as follows: YRR EFHAHS T
Group Company
xE NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F —E——F —E-——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FET FHET
On demand or BRERE—FR
within one year 208,433 53,665 14,000 -
In the second year E_F 28,000 - 28,000 =
In the third to fifth years F=FZFHF 28,000 - 28,000 =
264,433 53,665 70,000 -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ BHER A f

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

30. BORROWINGS (continued) 30. (5 & (&)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) KEBRAAT (£&)

fEEZERAE (FERFTHONE) S

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the borrowings are:

Group Company
X&E AN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g-=f . — —g-=f . —
Bank loans, ROTER (FHERA HIBOR + 1.8% HIBOR + 1.5% HIBOR + 4% -
secured and/or %/ SER) to to per annum
guaranteed HIBOR +4%  HIBOR + 2.25% BRET
per annum, per annum, R¥REE
LIBOR +2%  LIBOR +1.25% +F R R4%
to to
LIBOR +2.5%  LIBOR +2.25%
per annum and per annum and
6.1% to 8.5% 6.96%
per annum per annum
BRBT BB RIT
BEHFER R%HFEX
+EFZ18%E  +FFE15%2
BRBT BB RIT
BEHFER R%HFEX
+EFR4% - +FFE2.25%-
R BRAT BT
BEHFER R%HFEX
+EFE2%E  +EFIER125%F
R BRAT BT
BEHFER R%HFEX
+FEFE2.5% +F 7 %2.25%
BR AR
FHNE6A%E FH%6.96%
8.5%
Bank overdrafts, RITEX (FERRER) HIBOR + 3% - - -
secured and guaranteed per annum
BRBT
EFEE
+E R E3%

1 42 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED iEX£EBER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ #§
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

30. BORROWINGS (continued) 30. 88 (#)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

As at 31 March 2012, certain inventories of the Group
(Note 23) and certain bank deposits of the Group and of
the Company (Note 26) (2011: certain equity interest of a
subsidiary in the PRC and certain bank deposits of the Group
and of the Company) were pledged to banks to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The bank loans were also subject to corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 March 2011 and 2012.

The carrying values of borrowings are considered to be a

reasonable approximation of fair values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

TEBRAEQTR (£F)

R_E——F=ZA=+—8 ~5EBH
FTEE ([HF223) R AEBRARQRE
FERITIFER (MsE26) (ZT——F: —
MRENBEARZE TRARZ RASE
ERARQRAETRITFER) EEB TR
T UAAEERER 2 —RIBITREE
o

RBE-_Z——FRk-_FT—-%=A
=+ HUEFE RITERTAEARF
RETHBRARBRILZ CEXERER
ﬁo

B2 REERR RS IR ER R EM

o

_
1 mf

EEZEEENATIEEE:

Group Company
rEE KA T
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C—f —E——F —E-C—f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FAR FAET
HK$ BT 148,727 26,164 70,000 =
RMB AR 115,706 23,256 - =
EURO BT - 1,990 - =
Swiss Franc (“SF”) T A ED
(MHLABR]) - 2,255 - =
264,433 53,665 70,000 =

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED iEX£EBER A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %
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Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when
the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The movement on the deferred tax liabilities during the year is
as follows:

T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

EERIBIREGEE  FAHEED
TREEBEZERANE e ERZE
EE Eo

BEEMABERFAZEHIT :

2012 2011

=F—=F —F—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

At beginning of the year REH 2,734 206
Deferred taxation (credited)/charged to 825 (5t A) /1K

profit or loss (Note 10) EEFIE (HFE10) (581) 2,528

At end of the year NF R 2,153 2,734

The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position during the year is

FABERERE PR R K ER
HEEEEHMT :

as follows:

Accelerated Temporary
tax difference
depreciation on inventories Total
MERERE FEZEREER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FAET FET
At 1 April 2010 RZE—ZTFMAH—H 206 - 206
Charged to profit or loss  WEZEFIEK - 2,528 2,528
At 31 March 2011 and R_T——F
1 April 2011 =A=+—HBK
—E——FMHA—H 206 2,528 2,734
Credited to profit or loss st AEZS = (581) (581)
At 31 March 2012 N-B——fF
=A=+—H 206 1,947 2,153
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority and the entity intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

At the reporting date, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$14,056,000 (2011:
HK$13,960,000) arising in Hong Kong and the PRC available
for offset against future taxable profits. Unused tax losses
of approximately HK$9,263,000 were derecognised upon
the disposals of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2011. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams of those
subsidiaries which incurred these tax losses as at 31 March
2011 and 2012. The unused tax losses arising in the PRC of
approximately HK$2,905,000 (2011: HK$2,047,000) will be
expired if they are not utilised to set off against the taxable
profits within five years from the year in which they arose under
the current tax legislation in the PRC. Other unused tax losses
arising in Hong Kong may be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$23,896,000 (2011:
HK$13,655,000) have not been established for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries because the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future.
Such unremitted earnings for investments in subsidiaries totalled
approximately HK$477,927,000 (2011: HK$273,090,000) as at
31 March 2012.

T——F=H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

i 5 {8 0A 58 B A 1T 4 AT G DA AR HA R TR A
EEANMHIAAGYHE METEMEHR
EERFE MR BZ BB S
FREESE IRAREREENES
BE AELEHAEEEN BB EEE-

RBER AEEBREBRFEEEZ
fiy 51 K B) FA %% 18 /&5 18 414,056,000/
7t (ZZF——% 13,960,000/ 7T ) A] A
EH AR RERT A ERRBAH
JE [E5 18 499,263,000 TERE =2 =T
——F=ZA=1+—HULEFEHEHRED
AEBGRER ERNZEN =S —F
M—EBE-——F=ZA=+—HE4LAKEH
HEB 2B AR RN RRE B
Az AEBUEBRRECHEE
E-BEBEPREBTRE RPREEEZ
RE) AR IEREAI2,905,0008 7T (= F
——1%F 12,047,000/ 7T) N R B RE £
FERBFTAFRNBA - A HERT &
B BIERE - REBEBELE 2 HMAD
FA T TE 518 ] SRR B A5 85 o

ERAQNBEHETHBERA ZRKRE
HE MEREETKAERTRG
REE AT ERZEHNB LA KRB
REFNEN ZENBRBELELTCHIES
& #923,896,0008 T (=T — — F:
18,655,000 L) - R =T —=—F = A
=t+—8 %EWBRAAIKREZRBER
BF A K B#H477,927,0008 T (= F
——4:273,090,000/8 7T ) °
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. R
GROUP AND COMPANY AEBRAEAF
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZRREAE £
HK$’000
FAET
Authorised: EERAE:
Ordinary shares of SR EE0.0028 T 2 TR
HK$0.002 each
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011, RZE—ZTFMA—RH-
1 April 2011 and —E=——&F=fB=+—H-
31 March 2012 —E——FENA—-BRK
—E——Ff=A=+—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRERER:
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZE—ZTFHA—H 2,686,152,850 5,372
Issue of shares upon exercise of TEERERZEITRM
share options (Note 35) (HM$7E35) 140,172,000 280
Issue of shares upon conversion R MR RERETRG
of convertible notes (Note (a)) (Kt3E(a)) 150,000,000 300
At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 RZBE——F=A=+—8BxRK
—ZE——FWmA—H 2,976,324,850 5,952
Issue of shares upon exercise of ITF R RE RS BT AR (D
share options (Note 35) (HM$7E35) 3,504,000 7
At 31 March 2012 R-ZB-—-f=A=+-H 2,979,828,850 5,959

Note:

B & -

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the convertible notes
of the Company with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$82,500,000 were converted into 150,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each at a conversion price of HK$0.55 per
share.

(@)

RBE-T——F=A=+—HIEF
B ARAAXEFEE 182,500,000
T2 PR R IR H 08§ 8R0.557%8
7T ¥ 3, # 4150,000,0008% & f% [ &
0.002% T 2 EiBAR -

1 46 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED iEX£EBER A &
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T——F=H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares
issued for the acquisition under a group reorganisation in
1997.

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the
provisions of Section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 31 July 2009, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$260,000,000 and transferred the
same amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. On the same date, the Company applied an
amount of approximately HK$206,327,000 from the
contributed surplus account against the accumulated
losses; and

Dividends were reflected as an appropriation of
contributed surplus in respect of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2012 of approximately
HK$8,939,000 (2011: HK$29,763,000) and interim
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of
approximately HK$14,899,000 (2011: HK$8,929,000).

¥ 5 1 1

AEBEZRHRIFEBEREARANEE
MBARRMEAZERNZE
BER-NANEFETEEEMA
BRREMETZRNEEME
ZER-

A B

BEARAR-_ZZWFNA T+
HRETZREEFASLBEBZ
FRIRZER  AARBEBEARE
—NN\—FRBREFA6IEZIETE
18 E B% 17 5 & B 3 49286,300,000
B WHZEHEEREARAZ
BMABBEAN-RB  A2RHE
A& &5 BR H B) A £9286,906,000/%
LA RETEE &

BERARIANR_ZEZTAEFELA
=t+t—HERBAZRRAFAgL
B FERIRER  ANAFSER
17 %4 18 Bl 5 #9260,000,0005% T *
WHZeRERERRRIZHA
BBREAN-BH ARARBAR
#¢ B 7R B F #9206,327,00078 JT A
HIHREEE: &

BETRMAERBE-ZT —Z=F
“A=+—BLEFEZRHEAKRE
#98,939,000%& 7T (ZF — — % :
29,763,000 L) KB E=ZZT—=
F=A=+—ALFEZFBHEREK
B #114,899,0008 L (=& ——
F 18,929,000/ 7T ) NN B i %

=
A °
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

33. RESERVES (Continued) 33. & (&)

33.1 Group (Continued) 33.1 A&EE (£&)

Statutory reserve EERE

RNEB ZETE R 7 H Bk
BRARRBRMNZ D - BEBEAR
AFRBENBARSEZHBER
A ZERRIESFRERKRE
RERFTLR10% D REETHE
H EEREESREETMERZ
50% £ 1k © 3% &% 18 B R /EF00R AR 1A
FELEzEBRXBREWRER-

The Group’s statutory reserve represents appropriations
of profits retained by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.
In accordance with the respective articles of association
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, they are required
to appropriate amount not less than 10% of their profits
after income tax to statutory reserve each year, until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Such a reserve may be used to reduce any losses
incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

33.2 Company 33.2 KA H
Share Capital Share option Contributed Accumulated Proposed
premium?* reserve reserve surplus* losses* final dividend Total
{75 (B ERGfE  BRERRE YN 2iER RRRERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET T FHL FiEn T FHL
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-Z4RmA-A 569,782 4,951 = 146,294 (10,168) 8,059 718,918
Equity-settled share option INEREE Z BRERH
arrangement - - 18,991 - - - 18,991
Issue of shares upon exercise of TERRERETRA
share options 131,888 - (17,227) - - - 114,661
Issue of shares upon conversion of HRTRRZEREIRG
convertible notes 94,368 (1,443) - - - - 92,925
Final dividends paid for the year ended #HZ=-F-FF=A=+—AlLt
31 March 2010 (Note 14(5) EERRRERE (HH14p) = - - 450) - (8,059) (8,509)
Interim dividends paid for the period ~ BZ=ZF-FEAA=THIE
ended 30 September 2010 HEBNR SRS
(Note 14(a) (K14 = - - (8.929) - - 8,929)
Transactions with owners HBEBEAETZRS 206,256 (1,443) 1,764 (9,379) - (8,059) 209,139
Loss for the year and total AEEFERAFRE 2 ABRAE
comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (56,490) - (56,490)
Proposed final dividend for the year ~ HZ=F——5=A=+—RIt
ended 31 March 2011 (Note 14(a) SR ZBEFMRE (Kit4i) - - - (29,763) - 29,763 -
At 31 March 2011 R=F-—F=fA=1+-H 796,038 3,608 1,764 107,152 (66,658) 29,763 871,567

1 48 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED iEX£EBER A &
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33. RESERVES (Continued) 33. & (%)
33.2 Company (Continued) 33.2 AAF (£&)
Share Capital ~ Share option Contributed ~ Accumulated Proposed
premium* reserve’ reserve’ surplus™ losses* final dividend Total
RBEE AR BRERE AARH ZiEE  BRAERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx Fix FiL FHR Fix FHL FHx
At 1 April 2011 R=Z-——FRmA—-A 796,038 3,508 1,764 107,152 (66,658) 29,763 871,567
Equity-settled share option NEREE 7 BRETH
arrangement - - 1,443 - - - 1,443
Issue of shares upon exercise of TERRERE TR
share options 3,297 - (431) - - - 2,866
Final dividends paid for the year ended HZ=F——%=A=+—RIt
31 March 2011 (Note 14(o)) EEERFERE (HE14b) - - - - - 29,763) (29,763)
Interim dividends paid for the period ~ BZ=F——FnA=tHLE
ended 30 September 2011 HEEARERE
(Note 14(a) (W14 - - - (14,899) - - (14,899)
Transactions with owners BREAAETZRS 3,297 - 1,012 (14,899) - (29,763) (40,353)
Profit for the year and total AEERTIRAFELARALE
comprehensive income for the year - - - - 385 - 385
Proposed final dividend for the year ~ HZ=F--£=A=+—RIt
ended 31 March 2012 (Note 14(a) £ 2 BEABRE (HiE14a) - - - (8,939) - 8,039 -
At 31 March 2012 H=g-=£=A=1-A 799,335 3,508 2,776 83,314 (66,27) 8,939 831,509

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ EHER A f
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F
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F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

The contributed surplus of the Company consists of:

HK$51,286,000 being the difference between the
underlying consolidated net assets of Global Food
Culture Group Limited and its subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares which were
issued under a group reorganisation in 1997; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on
10 August 2004, the Company reduced its
share premium by an amount of approximately
HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the provisions
of Section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 31 July
2009, the Company reduced its share premium by
an amount of approximately HK$260,000,000 and
transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$206,327,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses; and

Dividends were reflected as an appropriation of
contributed surplus in respect of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2012 of approximately
HK$8,939,000 (2011: HK$29,763,000) and
interim dividend for the year ended 31 March
2012 of approximately HK$14,899,000 (2011:
HK$8,929,000).

These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s
reserve of approximately HK$822,660,000 (2011:
HK$841,804,000) in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

RRRZHBANBHELE:

REKRXCEBERA
A & BB B8 A 7] 2 A8 B AR
SEEFERARAR
—ANEFETEEER
B P e AT D < EE R &
Z %= %851,286,0007% I ;
I3

BEBEARBNR_ZETWEF
NA+HEBETZERRE
FRELBBZERR
BR ARARBEARE
—NAN—FRENEF 4615
Z R TE 1 R A O (B HA
#9286,300,0007% 7T + I
BZzeBBEEARRZ
BABRSBKEA-FAA K
NARBARREF A
#9236,906,0007% 7T A
HRFTER: &

BERARTR-_ZEELE
+tA=+—HBETZERE
RERE BB SRR
FERCAQRBEERGE
{8 Il 38 #7260,000,0005%
T ZeEEREEAR
NG Ok N
H  ARRRHBABERER
AR B F #9206,327,00078
TCAMKEE REE R &

KETTRBAEREE =
T—_—&H#=ZA=+—8H
LtEEZARBEREYN
8,939,000 T (=& ——
% :29,763,000/8 7T )
EBE=-_Z—Z=—%=A
=+—RILEFEZRHRK
B.4914,899,0005% 7T ( =
T — — % :8,929,000/
TT) R A BT -

S HERSREART B
MRBEARAZARRFREED
822,660,000/ T (=& — —
£ : 841,804,000 7T ) °
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The Group has no disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 March 2012. Details of disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2011 are as follows:

(a) Disposal of JDMM

On 11 March 2010, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P 1”) with a company (the
“Purchaser”) which is beneficially owned by Mr. Wong
Chun Loong (“Mr. Wong”), a key management personnel
of the Company and a close family member of Mr. Tong.
Pursuant to the S&P I, the Company has agreed to sell
(i) the entire issued share capital of JDMM, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(together as the “JDMM Group”); and (i) the benefits
of and interests in the loans owed by JDMM to JDH,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Sale
Loans”) (collectively refer to the “JDMM Disposal”), at an
aggregate consideration of HK$67,000,000 as agreed
by the contracted parties. The completion date of the
JDMM Disposal was on 27 April 2010 (the “Completion
Date I”). The JDMM Group was principally engaged in the
business of animations development in the PRC. Details
of the JDMM Disposal were included in the Company’s
circular dated on 31 March 2010.

The consideration was settled by 4 instalments of
which the Purchaser had to pay HK$10,000,000 at the
Completion Date | with last instalment to be made on
or before 31 December 2010. The remaining balance
of HK$40,000,000 was regulated by a non-interest
bearing promissory note which was jointly and severally
guaranteed by Mr. Wong and an independent third
party, and secured by a security deed executed by the
Purchaser and JDMM in favour of the Group creating a
charge over the entire issued share capital of JDMM and
incorporating an assignment of loan due from JDMM.

BE_ZT——4=ZA=+—B8BIt#
CAEBUTELEWNB AR -REE
T——F=A=+—HIFELEN
EER/NET =2 =R N

2 I

EJDMM

o
&

Hi

R=ZZT—ZTF=A+—8 &AF
H—ARERELEE ([FmEE]
ARREBEBABRELEZ
BEXHB)ESHEAZAR(IE
FAN—HhEEH#H([FE—
MEEWHH]) BEE—HEE
g AREBERELEHAAR
2 &Kt B A 7 JIDMM K H i B A
7 (#fE [IDMMEE]) 22 3B
1T IR AS ¢ Ko (i) JDMMES R AN A
AEEMNBRAREEHZERY
FMamki#Ez (THEER]) (5F
ATIDMMEEFE]) - BREK
] %075 1 € £&67,000,0007% JT ©
IODMMEEFEZ EXARA=T
—ZTFMA=++A ([HEZTK
HHEf]) - IDMM&EE = EEHBKE
EHEFEES - HBAIDMMEE
EEHBERRARRIBHAZ
T—FEF—HA=+—HZEBEK-

REESOHEN  ERFEHFER
& 18 78 A B B & 1710,000,0007%
T MxE—BNRR T —FF
+ZA=+—BZRIEL - 8258
40,000,000/ 7T % T aF B & H &
BHE ZAEAREBRBAELER—
BRI E=ZFHERARZRER I
HEHRIODMMUARER AF A
FLIDMM 2 2 B2 AT AR AN Bl 32
IR R ABEEIDMMER 2 B
AR 2 R AMEE AR -
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34, HEMB LT (2
GROUP (Continued) TEE (&)
(b) Disposal of JDH (b) HEFEH
On 30 September 2010, the Company entered into a RZZE—ZFNA=+H ~AF
sale and purchase agreement (the “S&P II”) with the MBI HEEHE([E=
Purchaser. Pursuant to the S&P I, the Company had HEEHmZ]) BEF-_MHEER

agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of JDH
and its subsidiaries (together as the “JDH Group”)
(the “JDH Disposal”), at an aggregate consideration of
HK$30,000,000 as agreed by the contracted parties.
The completion date of the JDH Disposal was on 18
November 2010 (the “Completion Date II”). The JDH
Group was principally engaged in the business of comics
development in Hong Kong and the PRC. Details of the
JDH Disposal were included in the Company’s circular
dated on 22 October 2010.

The consideration was be settled by 2 instalments of
which the Purchaser had to pay HK$10,000,000 at the
Completion Date Il with last instalment to be made on
or before 22 December 2010. The remaining balance
of HK$20,000,000 was secured by a security deed
executed by the Purchaser and JDH in favour of the
Group creating a charge over the entire issued share
capital of JDH.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED R &EBHRA &
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For the year ended 31 March 2011, the carrying amount of
assets/(liabilities) of the JDMM and JDH at the respective

completion dates of disposals were as follows:

HE-2-——F=A=t—ALFRE:
JDMMR 2 5350 486 1 # 78 5k B
M2 EE/ (AE) ZEEENT

JDMM JDH Total
JDMM EEH &5t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET FET FEIT
Net assets/(liabilities) HEZEE/(81&)
disposed of; FE
Property, plant and M HES MR
equipment (Note 17) (Ht3E17) 4,360 415 4,775
Goodwill (Note 19) 28 (fFsE19) 16,655 = 16,655
Inventories "E 21,681 1,466 23,147
Film rights % e 7,388 = 7,388
Trade receivables, net B E HFIAE - F5E 10,855 9,401 20,256
Deposits, prepayments e FEHFER
and other receivables H b jE U IR 10,126 2,442 12,568
Amounts due from JE Us B A 5008
related parties - 30,011 30,011
Cash at banks and in hand IRITNFHERE 7,174 3,522 10,696
Trade payables e E 5B (824) (6,723) (7,547)
Receipts in advance, AU FIE - EETE A
accrued charges and R E A 5 R IR
other payables (9,891) (8,974) (18,865)
Provision for taxation TIE R (240) (1,906) (2,146)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR 4 2 (3,716) = (3,716)
63,568 29,654 93,222
Amounts due from/(to) HEZR,/
the Group disposed of () A& BFIE (31,150) 3,500 (27,650)
Disposal of the Sales Loans HENEER 40,000 - 40,000
Release of exchange reserve o & B AR BR
upon disposal SNEE 6 18 (2,893) (1,168) (4,061)
Loss on disposal of HENBARZ
subsidiaries (Note 16) 18 (fizE16) (2,525) (1,986) (4,511)
Total consideration RERZE 67,000 30,000 97,000
Satisfied by: BmIATH A ER:
Cash received BWER e 27,000 30,000 57,000
Secured, interest-free EHEARE
promissory note A ER 40,000 -~ 40,000
67,000 30,000 97,000
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

34. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. LENE AT (&

GROUP (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposals of JDMM and JDH was as follows:

EL§+

rEME (&)

BEHIDMME EEFHEFHEZRE R
ReFEEARAFEZIINAOT:

JDMM JDH Total
JDMM EEH &t
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T T T T T
Cash received BUWIRE 27,000 30,000 57,000
Cash and bank balances PEZHEe R

disposed of R1TAEBR (7,174) (3,522) (10,696)

Net inflow of cash and ReEMREEEIER
cash equivalents mAEEE 19,826 26,478 46,304

35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 35. LR AERZEERHE

COMPENSATION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. The Scheme will expire on 6 October 2012.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees,
including executive directors, suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants and joint venture partners or business alliances of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

ARRzBRERTS ([ZETE]) R
BARBANR-_ZTZ_F+ALBEETZ
HX%%E'JK@J:@}@Z%@/;&E&W%N
M ETEANAKRTESERGERE
BB -ZEEN T ——F AN
BAEM - RIEZE ARAREEEA
HESERERTEERESR  BREN
RAFEEAMBABRZHATES - H#
B BEF BERAEAARAERH
HEME R UREAR R RN
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company’s ordinary shares.

On 15 April 2010, the Company granted 154,528,000 share
options to certain of its directors, employees and other eligible
persons for nil consideration at an exercise price of HK$0.82
per share.

On 4 July 2011, the Company granted 5,216,000 share
options to certain of its employees for nil consideration at an
exercise price of HK$1.52 per share.

T——F=H=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

ERBEARRNRIREELIER - O] IR IR
ZETEIR M 2 R TS &2 B D 42 2K
NIBBEARARANEMERD ZETR
D 210% ° TEAREAR A &) IR = St f
Bl AR —F AR TEMEAZE
BIEMSRZBRHEE  TEBBREARA
AIRNEREREBETRM Z1% KT
FERE KB IENITE S 2 BB AR
MBARNRBRAZ0A%HEEEBRS
5,000,000/ 7T + A 4B = SRR F IR
AL

Rz BRESARK SR BRE21
B A 4R - 0 P B A B B BRI BB AR
BB -BREAIRERERH
AMEEREBMETBFER LHHE
TE-TEERARAESTEE T
FERB DR L B BR3P 2 W
B BRONRERBERERDBHINAE
R AHEBR 2 Fm B @
BAERSRERE) -

IBABRD RER 2 EEMES AR
BE-BRBEBBITARA L BRI K
SEYSEZRAMBTETLBEREES
Pt -

N=F-TEMATRA AAA
45 15 1% 17 02 8 9 FRO.827% 7T 2 M

154,528,000 ETEE TES B
BENEMEBER AL

R-ZT——F+ AMNHE AR AEER
ITIEBEMK1.528 Ti% 15,216,00015
BERETHEETEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Details of the share options granted by the Company pursuant
to the Scheme and the share options outstanding as at
reporting dates were as follows:

35. LR AR EEMHE
(%)

RRBRBZ BT 2 BIRAEARR
BERRARTRZBEREZFENT

2012 —E-CF
Number of options
BREHA
Balance at Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 April during during the during 31 March
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2011 the year year the year 2012
i B®
E--f B-CZf
A-B ZA=t-8
ARAER REAH M k@ iR FREY FRTE FREN P4 33
HK$
BT
Directors
Ez
Zhang Si Jian 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
RERE “Z-FFMATEA “Z-TEMATHEAZ
—Z-=FMA+MA
Mr. Choy 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 2,504,000 - (1,000,000 - 1,504,000
B4 “Z-FFMATEA “Z-TEMATHEAZ
—Z-=FMA+MA
Lam Kwok Cheong 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 596,000 - - - 596,000
HEE “Z-FFMATEA “Z-TEMATREAZ
—Z-=FMA+MA
Lee Thomas Kang Bor 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 1,248,000 - - - 1,248,000
ZER “Z-ZEMATRA “Z-ZEMATRAEZR
—Z-=FMA+MA
In aggregate 9,348,000 - (1,000,000) - 8,348,000
CH)
Employees 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 5,008,000 - (2,504,000) - 2,504,000
B2 “Z-TFMATER “Z-TEMATEAZ
“Z-=fMA+MA
4 July 2011 4 July 2011 to 3 July 2014 1.52 - 5,216,000 - (304,000) 4,912,000
“Z——%tAMmA “Z-——§tAMmAZ
“Z-mFtA=A

In aggregate

=k

Total
&zt

5008000 5216000 (2,504,000 (304,000 7,416,000

14,356,000 5,216,000 (3,504,000) (304,000) 15,764,000

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F &



L
B RS R AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

~ = #
35. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 35. URM BERZEEHE
COMPENSATION (continued) (%)
2011 —T——%
Number of options
BREZA
Balance at Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 Apri during during during 31 March
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2010 the year the year the year 2011
i i
—2-%% 2%
mA—H =A=1-H
ER AR it B e T8 28 FRRM FRTR FRKH a3
HKS
AR
Directors
iz
Mr. Tong 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 25,000,000 (25,000,000) - -
BE4E ZZ-ZEMATRA “I-TEMATRAZ
ZZ-=FMA+RA
Zhen Hao Jiang 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 25,000,000 (25,000,000) - -
gET “Z-FFMATEA “Z-TEMATREAZ
ZZ-=FMA+RA
Mr. Zhao 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 25,000,000 (25,000,000) - -
BEE ZZ-ZEMATRA “Z-TEMATRAZ
ZZ-=FMA+RA
Zhang Si Jian 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
REE “Z-FFMATEA “Z-TEMATRAZ
ZZ--FMA+RA
Mr. Choy 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 2,504,000 - - 2,504,000
BEHE —Z-TEMATEA “T-TEMATRAZE
ZZ--FMA+RA
Lam Kwok Cheong 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 2,504,000 (1,908,000) - 596,000
HEE “Z-FFMATEA “Z-TEMATRAZ
ZZ-=FMA+RA
Lee Thomas Kang Bor 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 2,504,000 (1,256,000) - 1,248,000
ZER ZZ-ZEMATRA ZZ-ZEMATRAZE
ZZ--FMA+RA
In aggregate - 87,512,000 (78,164,000 - 9,348,000
A%
Employees 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 7,512,000 (2,504,000) - 5,008,000
[} —“Z-3FMAt+ER —Z-ZFMA+ARE
“F--fMA+MA
Consultants, advisers, 15 April 2010 15 April 2010 to 14 April 2013 0.82 - 59,504,000  (59,504,000) - -
customers and business
associates
B EHA BFREEEN —T-TFMATRA “Z-TENATRRE
“F--fMA+MA
Total - 154,528,000  (140,172,000) - 14,356,000
@zt
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED BX&EBE R A &
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The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding share
options as at 31 March 2012 was HK$1.038 (2011: HK$0.82)
per share.

The weighted average share price for share options exercised
during the year at the date of exercise was HK$0.95 (2011:
HK$0.99) per share.

The fair values of share options granted on 4 July 2011 and
15 April 2010 were determined using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model that takes into account factors specific to the
share incentive plans. The following principal assumptions were
used in the valuation:

T——_F=H=+—HIEFEE For the year ended 31 March 2012

N-EBE——F=RA=+—BHKTEZ
B 2 NEFHTEE A EK1.038
BILT(ZZ——F:08287T) °

FRETHEZERERITERZMN
T HREASROISET (22— —
F:0.9987T) °

R-ZE——F+tARB R T —ZTFM
A+HHBEEBELHEREZ ARETIRA

ST EER (L5 Rikh ZEE

SR ERR)EBE HERMAZEE
SE G UNNE

Share options granted on

RTIBEBRREZERE

4 July 2011 15 April 2010

—B-—% S

tAMA A+EHH

Share price at date of grant HK$1.520 HK$0.823
REBHZRE 1.5207 7T 0.823% 7T
Expected volatility 40.416% 56.566%
T8 B R R 40.416% 56.566%
Expected option life 1.5 years 0.5 year
T8 &t 8 AR 4F BR 1.54F 0.5%F
Dividend yield 0.399% 0.973%
iR B = 0.399% 0.973%
Risk-free interest rate 0.258% 0.125%
i g ) =X 0.258% 0.125%
Exercise price at date of grant HK$1.520 HK$0.820
REBBH21TEE 1.5207 7T 0.8207% J©

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference
to historical data, calculated based on expected life of share
options. Expectations of early exercise were incorporated into
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. No special features
pertinent to the options granted were incorporated into
measurement of fair value.

In total, approximately HK$1,443,000 (2011: HK$18,991,000)
of equity-settled share option expenses have been included
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2012, of which
the corresponding amount has been credited to share option
reserve in the owners’ equity. No liabilities were recognised due
to share-based payment transactions.

HERRKELI2EBEER REBR
BZEBEAFHAE -BHRERTEDS
AEHRDRTERE -HEARERT
Bt ABHO BRI -

& H 491,443,000 c (=T ——F:
18,991,000 70 ) 2 A m & E 2 8
BERYBEFABEZE_ZE——F=A
=t+t—HIEFEZBZR MAESE
EFFAEB AR 2 BRERE -
EEEDREURDABER 2R S
R e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 6. REHFAILE

(a)

(b)

Group as lessor

The Group sub-leases out a number of rented premises
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial non-
cancellable period of 5 years. The rentals on this lease
are calculated based on a percentage of the relevant
sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental agreement.
Contingent rents recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to approximately
HK$21,327,000 (2011: HK$3,982,000).

Group as lessee

As at the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments payable by the Group under non-cancellable
operating leases, including operating lease commitment
to related parties as disclosed in note 40(b), are as
follows:

(a)

(b)

AEEFE/SHBEA

AEERBCEHESHEZEMR
EME-HEY L RBESE T
g RBEHERZE WHEEZHA
& NREFPHEBHEE 28 2 LE
BE-HEr—_T——F=A=1+—H
IHFE RESBERZIABE A
#921,327,000/8 L (ZF——4F :
3,982,000/ 7T) °

FEBE/EBAA

RI|ER  AEBERETAIHHEL
LHEEMN 2 RRKEREFKR
# 58 (845 I 72 40(b) P 4% B8 17 8
BALEHZEREREAE)RH
FIET

2012 2011

—E——fF —E—%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T T

Within one year —FR 117,943 54,760
In the second to fifth years —FEFERF

inclusive (BiEEEME) 333,099 132,526

After five years AEME 233,540 22,744

684,582 210,030

The Group leases a number of office premises, bonded
warehouse, showrooms and staff quarters under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of
one to ten years (2011: one to ten years). None of these
leases include contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any significant operating
lease commitments.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ EER A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

37.

38.

39.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 37. EX R HM AR
GROUP AEE
2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT
Contracted but not provided for TEEYE HBENK
in respect of acquisition of property, B ET 48 R B
plant and equipment 39,014 874

Save as mentioned above, as at the reporting date, according
to certain distributorship agreements for trading of luxury
goods, the Group has committed to open thirteen (2011:
thirteen) boutiques during the terms of the distributorship
period.

The Company does not have any significant capital and other
commitment.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

During the year ended 31 March 2011, certain deposits of
approximately HK$1,213,000 were set-off with acquisition cost
of certain property, plant and equipment.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

COMPANY

As at the reporting date, the Company has executed corporate
guarantee to certain banks with respect to general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of
approximately HK$140,060,000 (2011: HK$180,900,000). As
at the reporting date, no provision for the Company’s obligation
under the financial guarantee contracts has been made. The
directors of the Company considered that it was not probable
that the repayments of the borrowings would be in default.

38.

39.

BEdEN RBEH - REEEERS
m2 B THRIBERZ  NEEDAER
REFHARKR T =ZEA( =T ——%:
T=@E)EE-

AR A AT AR B E A J E Al g

RERERERME

BE_T——F=-FA=1+—HLFE"
& T £ %1,213,0008 T 2 #H 5 E T
M Has MR WA -

BBRERREN
RAF

RB|ER RNARREETHEARE
2 —MR1715 B 49140,060,000/% 7T
(=ZZ——%:180,900,000/% 7T ) [ &
FRAOBYARER - RBRER L E
RARNRRUBERENZEFTIRE
B ARNREERA T RAREEHBEER
BEERZER-
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During the year, except
these financial statements,
significant transactions with

For the year ended 31 March 2012

as disclosed elsewhere in
the Group had the following
related parties:

FRN - BRI HRREA I D AT
WEEIN  NEE S EBE A T
TTIIEARRS

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET F& T
Payment of comic script TNTF—REEALZ
fee and bonus to a BERIARNE RIEA
related party (i) - 624
Payment of salary and THTFEEALZHFER
administrative fees to THER
related parties (if) - 586
Sales of jewelleries and MESFHERBEREGR
fine wines to directors (iii) 249 -
Sales of jewelleries to a M—BEEATHERE
related party (iv) - 23
Sales of jewelleries to a M—2RREHEKE
shareholder (V) - 83
Sales of fine wines, m—EEER R HE R
watches and jewelleries FHEKEARREHER
and provision of after- i
sale services to a
related company (Vi) 100 8,027
Payment of rents to a TIRNTF—2BRRZEE
shareholder (vii) 41,811 767
Payment of rents, XHT—4A Eﬁﬁi}\iz
management fees and He BEEBR
office expenses to a NN Y
related party (viii) 2,237 541
Payment of rents, S F—M F% C/NE] ol
management fees and %ﬁi Ei@ )Si
office expenses to a NN Y
related company (ix) - 1,635
Payment of rents to a TN T—HBEEARZ
related company e (ix) - 10
Purchase of inventories i — IR A Al T
from a related company (x) - 12,297
Purchase of property, M—ZEETEEWE-
plant and equipment Wt K &
from a director (xi) 707 -
Purchase of property, mM—ZRREEWE -
plant and equipment e N 7R A
from a shareholder (xii) - 978
Loan from a related party —%RBEEATZERK (xiii) - 302
Payment of advertising fee X F—RHEEQARZ
to a related company BEE (xiv) - 600
Receipt of colour and MEAZEQFWE Ee R
photo and manuscript BEAMESER
fee from related
companies (xv) - 200
Sales proceeds from mm—HEEARILE
the JDMM and JDH JDMM&E%EHLI&HX%%
disposal to a related Fr{S 3k38 (M9 7E34)
company (Note 34) - 97,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 40. A

(@) Related party transactions (Continued) (a)

GROUP (Continued)

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group paid
comic script fee and bonus to Mr. Wong, a close family
member of Mr. Tong in the capacity as chief creative officer
pursuant to the relevant service agreement signed with the
Group.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group paid
salary and administrative expenses to certain close family
members of Mr. Tong. The amounts paid to these related
parties are for the purpose of normal course of business.
No individual persons received over HK$1,000,000.

(i) During the year, the Group sold certain items of jewelleries
and fine wines to four directors of the Company, Mr. Tong,
Mr. Choy, Mr. Gao and Mr. Zhao.

(iv)  During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group sold
certain jewelleries to a close family member of Mr. Tong.

(v) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group sold
certain jewelleries to Mr. Qi.

(vi)  During the year, the Group sold certain fine wines (2011:
certain watches and jewelleries and provided after-
sale services) to a related company in which Mr. Qi has
beneficial interests.

(vii)  During the year, the Group paid rents to Mr. Qi.
(viii)  During the year, the Group paid rents, management fees

and office expenses to a related party who is a close family
member of Mr. Qi.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 40. AEATHE

(@) Related party transactions (Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ix)  During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group paid
rents, management fees and office expenses to related
companies in which Mr. Qi has beneficial interests.

(X) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group
purchased certain inventories from a related company in
which Mr. Qi has beneficial interests.

(xi)  During the year, the Group purchased certain property,
plant and equipment from Mr. Zhao.

(xi) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group
purchased certain property, plant and equipment from Mr.
Qi.

(xiii)  During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group entered
into a loan agreement pursuant to which the Group
borrowed a loan at interest rate of 5% per annum from a
related party who was a close family member of Mr. Tong.
Interest paid in relation to the loan for the year ended 31
March 2011 was HK$11,000. The amount was fully repaid
during the year ended 31 March 2011.

(xiv) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group paid
advertising fee to a related company in which Mr. Wong
has beneficial interests.

(xv)  During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group received
colour and photo and manuscript fee from related
companies in which Mr. Wong has beneficial interests.

The directors of the Company considered that the
directors’ remuneration as set out in note 11 is equivalent
to the Group’s key management’s remuneration.

(a)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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(ix)

(xili)

(xiv)

(xv)

Z’K /N

RBE-T——F=A=+—H
IFFE ARERZHEARELLE
BREmMER BB NRNHE
2 BEENPLAERX -

RBE-T——F=A=+—H
IEFE - AL EE— ﬁ&%%i
FREGEa BMERARBES
THE-

FH AEERBEEEBEST
ME - HRERE-

EEE $%Eﬁ%%$%§%
T R RRE-

REBEE-_Z——F=A=1+—H
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+

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued) 40. BEALTHE &)

(b) Operating lease commitment to related parties (b) MBEEAT/FHZKLHERIE

GROUP

As at the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments payable by the Group to Mr. Qi and a close
family member of Mr. Qi under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

FEE

RIRE R - AN EBERE T ] BEHE
EHERNELEREEE—F
BERHEBZARBRERERER
BMIREIOT

2012 2011

—E-=f —2——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH T

Within one year —F R 57,732 5,233
In the second to fifth years E_FEFRF

inclusive (BRERMSF) 222,988 9,157

After five years AENE 220,244 _

500,964 14,390

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Company’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

M. cHEABEERAAERE

AEEREREBRRETEREHMT
B AMASEEER- %% ER
BEMSERR(BEE% AR FXER
e HERER)  EERR LIRS
R -

TREREERAASEANRE MR
ExeEmor-EHESRRRZER
BEREREERMBSARZIERT -
BRASETEHZRAERE -

REHBENE
BR

BEEMTAYIFARAZ
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of

financial position relate

to the following categories of

financial assets and financial liabilities:

(%)

4111 tRIEEREEER

M. cREBEERQAAES

i

R BRIz 25 2 BREEW &
NTemEERERBERR:

Group Company
rE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
8- —T——% ZB-Z§f _—T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET TER FHET
Financial assets CRMEE
Financial assets at fair value &2 70 BB 5 & 51| BR
through profit or loss: JEMEE:
— Held for trading —REEE 79,837 = - =
— Designated upon initial — RO FHRRIETE
recognition 3,208 - - -
Loans and receivables: Bk EWKIA
- Rental deposits paidto  — B @EA LS
related parties i 14,232 - - -
— Trade receivables — U E 5508 29,529 90,625 - =
- Other receivables —H o RIA 64,375 109,568 - -
- Amount due from —El—REEAT
a related party FIE 14,232 - - =
— Amounts due from — W KT A AR IA
subsidiaries - - 913,334 878,235
- Pledged bank deposits —BHEFEITER 39,126 42,325 6,369 3,369
- Cash at banks and - RORFERS
in hand 130,382 215,300 6,965 254
374,921 457,818 926,668 881,858

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F &
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢t AR EERAAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#&)
41.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 411 ¢sREEREBEER (£)
(Continued)
Group Company
rEE KAH
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--f T ZB-=fF C"T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FTHET FHET
Financial liabilities tRER

Financial liabilities measured Ak #4 B AT & 2

at amortised cost: TRAE:
- Trade payables —ENE S5 %IEA 20,435 15,438 - =
- Accrued charges and B ERAREM

other payables FE 3R IE 23,742 61,094 910 1,418
- Amounts due to related  —JE{HREE A L FUE

parties 2,276 46,448 - -
— Amounts due to L ENGIE e

subsidiaries - - 18,200 3,200
- Borrowings —f5E 264,433 53,665 70,000 =

310,886 176,645 89,110 4,618

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ BHER A f
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 F &
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Transactions in foreign currencies and the Group’s
risk management policies

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from bank deposits and
borrowings, which are primarily denominated in EURO,
SF, RMB and US$ while the Company’s exposures to
currency risk arise from bank deposits which are primarily
denominated in RMB. These are not the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries to which
these transactions relate. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing closing
rates as at reporting dates, are as follows:

F=A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012

SR G RAEEZE b EE
BE

EREAREERIAZARER
ARRERERAINEERE S M
ME)Z B - REE 2 B R BIR
BRTTEALEE  TEUBTT
IR AR RETIE M
ARR 2 ERERIKEBEEZAA
RENEZRITHER WMFERL
FARAREZER 5 A
BAR RS AKRERFL
EINEEARR AN EEEE
EEINERE  WRAFERE R
HBHRERINE R -

MONERTEZEREERAEBR
BERREFUTERERBT
BT

2012 2011
B-f &
Notional
amounts of
derivative
Financial Financial financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities instruments exposure assets liabilities exposure
frEew
SHEE SRERE IAEE BRI SHEE eRAR BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER ThERL FER TiHx TAL TAL
EURO BT 88,546 (1,099) 90,032 177,479 37,523 (1,990) 35,533
SF LA - (7,928) - (7,928) = (2,255) (2,255)
RMB ARE 32,022 - - 32,022 3,585 - 3,585
Us$ Ep 5,890 - - 5,890 6,775 - 6,775
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As US$ is pegged to HKS$, the Group does not expect
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange
rate. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group's
sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is disclosed
as in the opinion of directors of the Company, such
sensitivity analysis does not give additional value in view
of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$ exchange rates
as at the reporting dates.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 March 2012 and retained
profits in regards to a 5% (2011: 5%) appreciation in
HK$ against EURO, SF and RMB respectively. The 5%
is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. $RiEREEN AAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.2 SN E R (&)

HEETH

mASETTEE T EE Bt K&
EERETAETERAIEGHEA
EREREH ARARAEER
A ERETA B TERRNRE R
ZEHENY - ARELXTIEZ
CRMEERABZHRELNL
EREEIMEE EMLERESR
BB E DA

TREAAEERBE_T——
FZA=ZTHLEFEZEER
PRE i M B T BT ~ A RS
RAREDBITFHES% (ZF——
F5%)ZHRBE-5%TIAEE
B IR A B {EINE B R A AR R S R
R - 3 e TR E SN R
BEEE 2 REMET -

Results for the year
and retained profits

AEEEERRE A
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—-—F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHAT
EURO BT (8,069) (1,793)
SF I A BR 331 94
RMB AR (1,600) (151)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED X &£ EER A 7
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HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2012

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning of
the financial years and held constant throughout the year.

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against EURO, SF, and RMB
would have the same magnitude on the Group’s results
for the year and retained profits but of opposite effect.

These are the same method and assumption used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 March 2011.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to
be representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

As the Company does not have significant exposure
to foreign currency risk, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in foreign currency rates.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %

M. cREAREERAAENE

41.2 SN E R (&)

HBEED (E)

AEBRHRE QAR 2 IMNE R 8
RRE 34 AR BRF R ) 22 SNEE B R
RERADLESH /KT WRR
REHR2FEFTEMEE -

BILRLBT mDERRARKE
B5% HHAKERAFREZ R
BMRkREBENMNAFEFEERZ
=2

BEDFTEFGHBE_FT——F
A=t -HLEFEMBRRLZ

BREDTERA 2 7ERBR
EIER

SN BB = E B & R B F R 28 41
RBBEMABAMTR - EE WL
Lt DR BRI KRR AR R
A2 SN R o

34 AN 2 7 3 4 7R R B A S L
B HARTZMAREERS R
SRATRAMEXRDTE -
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Exposures to interest rate risk and the Group’s risk
management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank deposits (Note 26) and
borrowings (Note 30) while the Company’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from bank deposits (Note 26). The
Group has not used any derivative contracts in order to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has
not formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 March 2012 to a possible
change in interest rates of +/-0.5% (2011: +/-0.5%), with
effect from the beginning of the year. The calculations
are based on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
held at the reporting date. All other variables are held
constant. The assumed changes have no significant
impact on the Company’s other components of equity.

RE 2 FEm b R AL 2R
EEHR

NMEEBREESRIAZAAER
RenERTHN X E B MK
ZRERR - AREZFRERERIR
BT (M 5E26) REE (4
AE30) - MARAZMEREBREE
RERITER (M 5E26) - A% E
WEFERERMITETREAHE
HL 2 L o A 5% B 3 4 ) AT B 2R
R RERRZ BUR o

BB E T

TRELAEEEE T ——F=
A=+ BUEFEZEEEH A
FOER 2 BEFNEEB)+/- 0.5%
(ZZT——%F: +/- 0.5%) Z UK
BostBEREUAEERRE AR
EreRmEERABREE -FTH
HBEEHTE - BRREHE AR
NAEm 2z HME D W EE KT
2 o

Results for the year
and retained profits

170

rEEEBERRERA
Group Company
rEH AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
+0.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
2012 —E--F (119) 119 (318) 318
2011 —E——%F 950 (950) 15 (15)
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

41.3

41.4

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risk at the reporting date has been
determined based on the assumed percentage changes
in interest rates taking place at the beginning of the
financial years and held constant throughout the year.

These are the same method and assumption used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 March 2011.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising from
changes in the market price underlie its financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. As at the reporting date,
the Group’s other price risk is mainly concentrated on the
investments in wine futures.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risk in relation to the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
is the wine futures, at the reporting date.

If the market price of the wines in relation to the wine
futures had been 5% (2011: Nil) higher/lower, profit for
the year ended 31 March 2012 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$3,992,000 (2011: Nil) as a result of
the changes in these financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

M. cREAREERAAENE

[ 45 )
(/éff/

41.3

41.4
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Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. Generally, the maximum
credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying
amount of the financial assets as shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position which
are summarised in note 41.1 above. None of the financial
assets of the Group are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements.

All the Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks located in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC.

The Group trades mainly with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. Further
detailed exposure to credit risk of the Group is disclosed
in note 24.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk.
Receivables from two counterparties represented about
54% of the Group’s trade receivables and receivables
from two counterparties represented about 58% of the
Group’s other receivables as at 31 March 2012 (2011: a
counterparty represented 52% and 53% of the Group’s
trade receivables and other receivables respectively).
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC (2011: the PRC and
Malaysia).

The Company is not exposed to significant concentration
of risk.

F=ZA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2012
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AEBETEREZREERKZ
FZNETR S - REAKE 2K
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LEFHBKBEERERRF It
S+ AN B IR AR B R I U ROR 4
g BAmAREZZEREBRYL TS
Ko REEAMIERRIBER AR ZIE
W B 5 3R K Bl KR 2 B
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. $RiEREEN AAEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

41.6 Liquidity risk 41.6 B E R

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31
March 2012. When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis of
the earliest date on when the Group can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ %
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. £ RiERMEE N A ALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of

(%)

41.6 "B R (&)

i

PN EBABZRBRRER

the financial liabilities. = AKE-
Group KEE
Total Less than
contractual  one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above
ERRER  PR-FR
REE REeREBAE REREE —FERUEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THAT THAT THAT
At 31 March 2012 R=B-=%
Non-derivative financial FTESRBMTE:
instruments:
Trade payables e B 5% E 20,435 20,435 20,435 =
Accrued charges and FEEtE R R EAM
other payables 23,742 23,742 20,653 3,089
Amounts due to T E A TR
related parties 2,276 2,276 2,276 -
Borrowings 264,433 272,112 213,253 58,859
310,886 318,565 256,617 61,948
At 31 March 2011 RZT——%F
Non-derivative financial FTESRMTE:
instruments:
Trade payables e B 5% E 15,438 15,438 15,438 =
Accrued charges and FEEtE R R EAM
other payables 61,094 61,094 57,428 3,666
Amounts due to FE T8 A 508
related parties 46,448 46,448 46,448 -
Borrowings 53,665 54,186 54,186 -
176,645 177,166 173,500 3,666
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. ¢@iREREER AAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#&)
41.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 41.6 RENEREE (&)
Company ¥
Total Less than
contractual  one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow on demand or above
EHRREE  IR-ER
IREE HEeREHAH RERESR —FEHULE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET
At 31 March 2012 R-B-=%
=B=+-H
Non-derivative financial FTESRTIA:
instruments:
Accrued charges et & F 910 910 910 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries ARG 18,200 18,200 18,200 =
Borrowings BE 70,000 75,972 17,113 58,859
89,110 95,082 36,223 58,859
Financial guarantees issued: BENMBER:
Maximum amount ERIELR
guaranteed 78,727 78,875 78,875 -
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%F
=B=+—H
Non-derivative financial FTESRTIA:
instruments:
Accrued charges et & A 1,418 1,418 1,418 =
Amount due to a subsidiary e — KT B A A
A 3,200 3,200 3,200 -
4,618 4,618 4,618 -
Financial guarantees issued: BEENMBER:
Maximum amount ERZELR
guaranteed 30,409 30,686 30,686 -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. $RiEREEN AAEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

41.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the 41.7 R BERRBRERZ DA AEF

statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1EX£EBER A 7
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 41. $RiEREEN AAEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

41.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2012 are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

4.7 RMBRRBRERZANE

n_l‘l_f

B(#&)

R-ZE——F=A=+—HRE&
EUBRABRIZAAETEZ
CRMEERBBEREAAESER

follows: BRI
Group KEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
&% Bl — &A= &A= At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHBT FHBT FHT
As at 31 March 2012 R-E——%F
=A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value ~ AR EREZR R
through profit or loss RS RMEE
(Note (a)) (FIsE@)) - - 79,837 79,837
Derivative financial instruments $7T4 &g T A
(Note (b)) (FF=ED)) = 3,208 = 3,208
- 3,208 79,837 83,045

There have been no significant transfers between levels
1 and 2 and no transfers into or out of level 3 during the
reporting period.
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Notes: B 5T

(a) BAABEREZXIKZZ

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

The fair values of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss held by the Group are
estimated using a valuation technique that is not
based on observable market data. The financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
included in Level 3 and consist of wine futures.

Of the total gains for the year included in profit or
loss, profit of approximately HK$10,171,000 relates
to wine futures are included in “fair value gains on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” in
the other income as disclosed in note 7.

Derivative financial instrument

Where derivatives are traded either on exchanges
or liquid over-the-counter markets, the Group uses
the closing price at the reporting date. Normally, the
derivatives entered into by the Group are not traded
on active markets. The fair values of such contracts
are estimated using a valuation technique that
maximises the use of observable market inputs e.g.
market currency and interest rates (Level 2). The
derivatives entered into by the Group are included
in Level 2 and consist of foreign currency forward
contracts.

Of the total gains for the year included in profit or
loss, profit of approximately HK$3,208,000 relates
to foreign currency forward contracts are included in
“fair value gains on derivative financial instruments”
in the other income as disclosed in note 7.

The Company does not expose to the risk on fair
value measurement.
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The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated as bank
loans and overdrafts, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Total capital is calculated as total equity,
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable

T——F=H=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2012
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level. BIENKFE o
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Total debt B HALE

Borrowings BE 264,433 53,665
Total capital BT 1,456,974 1,268,451
Total debt to capital ratio HWEBHERL R 18.1% 4.2%
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Financial Summary

RESULTS E
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“TEN\§ ZTTNE T -%F C—T—% C-E--§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TET FHT TR
Revenue e 156,726 611,530 1,219,128 3,322,985 4,427,423
Profit/(loss) for the year AAREEAER
attributable to the owners AEERF/
of the Company (B#8) 6,585 (189,969) 113,016 183,677 214,188
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—ZENE ZTThE —T-%F —T——F ZB-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THT AT FHT TR
Total assets BEE 411,777 879,172 1,184,999 1,708,923 1,922,865
Total liabilities wafk (52,891) (300,221) (311,093) (435,472) (465,891)
358,886 578,951 873,906 1,268,451 1,456,974
Equity attributable to the owners N2 R A A FE(G %
of the Company 351,450 575,494 869,802 1,263,183 1,452,227
Minority interests PEREEE 7,436 3,457 4,104 5,268 4,747
358,886 578,951 873,906 1,268,451 1,456,974
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